KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority

ANNUAL REPORT
2008/2009

Vision
To position the province of KwaZulu-Natal
as Africa’s leading tourism destination, nationally and internationally

Mission
To initiate, facilitate, co-ordinate and implement:
– strategic tourism marketing; and
– demand-driven tourism development programmes
which grow tourism, thereby serving to achieve:
– the transformation of the tourism sector within the province; and
– provides economic benefits to all stakeholders and the province
Objectives

Values

•

Increase foreign arrivals;

•

We value the contribution of our people by recognising

•

Increase share of domestic visitors;

•

Increase tourism expenditure (spend);

•

We all strive for superior delivery of customer service,

•

Reduce foreign seasonality;

•

Increase geographic spread;

•

Improve destination image and service excellence;

•

Responsible and demand-driven tourism;

their performance and appreciating them as people;
both internally and externally;
•

We are committed to making KwaZulu-Natal the top

•

In performing our duties we will trust each other to be

destination in Africa;

development and accessibility;
•

Strategic leadership;

•

Transformation; and

•

Enabling environment.

honest and reliable;
•

We will respect each other and communicate in a way that

•

In all our dealings we will act with integrity, so that people

•

Through our professionalism, people will value dealing with

•

Team spirit is what will make TKZN a great place to work for!

demonstrates this;
trust us;
us; and
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MEC’s message
Tourism is poised to become an even greater economic driver in the province of KwaZulu-Natal than it has been in
the past. In spite of the economic downturn, KwaZulu-Natal has set itself the target of using this industry as an
engine to drive the economic upliftment of our communities, in particular, the historically disadvantaged
communities. In order to achieve this, KwaZulu-Natal will continue to use Tourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN) to maintain
the province’s leading position in the domestic tourism market and significantly increase its share of the
international tourism market.
It is therefore with great pride that as MEC for Economic Development and Tourism I receive Tourism KwaZuluNatal’s annual report for the 2008/09 financial year. Among other strides, this report showcases the achievements
that have been notched by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal to drive greater tourist numbers in the province. TKZN is a public
entity with a mandate to, among other things, market as well as develop tourism in the province. In order to
achieve this mandate it has established benchmarks in marketing, information services and tourism development
based on the revised tourism strategic plan for 2008 – 2012.
It is also pleasing to note that there is a definite alignment between the activities carried out by TKZN during the
period under review and the focus areas outlined in the strategy document. This sets the province on a very good
path to achieving overall tourism goals. This annual report indicates that TKZN is delivery focused; that there has
been adherence to fundamental principles of co-operative governance; partnerships; leveraging of resources as well
as continued transformation of the tourism sector. With the 2010 FIFA Soccer World Cup around the corner, the
role of tourism as a key economic driver in the province becomes even more apparent.
This sentiment was aptly and amply captured by the Minister of Environmental Affairs and Tourism,
Marthinus van Schalkwyk in his opening speech at the local government Indaba 2009 when he said: “The
importance of the role of the local government in the successful growth of the tourism industry cannot be
overemphasised, local government is the engine room that drives the planning and management of South Africa’s
natural and cultural assets”.

With the 2010 FIFA Soccer World Cup around the corner,
the role of tourism as a key economic driver in the province becomes even more apparent
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In pursuit of this goal, our department remains

visitors to the province of KwaZulu-Natal. In order to

committed in its drive to make KwaZulu-Natal a

achieve this, we want to intensify our marketing of

destination of choice and maintain tourism as a

KwaZulu-Natal as a province that offers an

contributor to economic growth. KwaZulu-Natal

unforgettable and unique experience in terms of its

continues to gear itself up for the 2010 FIFA World

tourism packages. As the premier of our province,

Cup through the promotion of service excellence and

Dr ZL Mkhize said in his recent state of the province

partnerships in tourism as well as unlocking tourism

address, we want to explore opportunities in

potential at municipal level in the province.

countries which were previously not our traditional

The 2010 FIFA World Cup spectacle is a once in a

markets. In the ever changing global economic

lifetime experience. It offers the people of KwaZulu-

landscape, tourism has been transformed into more

Natal the opportunity to showcase to the world the

than just an enriching personal experience. It has

unparalleled beauty of the province of KwaZulu-Natal,

become a key economic driver and one of the biggest

its unique character as well as its cornucopia of

foreign currency earners for many countries. With its

cultures which exist in harmony. Among an array of

unique features, KwaZulu-Natal is more than just

interventions that have been made by TKZN to

poised to seize these opportunities with both hands.

consolidate the strides we have already made in
tourism, is the introduction of an initiative to offer

We would like to thank and commend the outgoing

skills to our people who are involved in service

board for the contribution they made towards the

delivery in the tourism sector. In this regard a number

betterment of the Authority. We would also like to

of training programmes have been lined up as part of

commend the new board and CEO of TKZN, Ndabo

efforts to achieve sustained changes in the behaviour

Khoza, his management team and staff for their hard

and attitude with an overarching goal of making

work and wish them well in the coming year.

KwaZulu-Natal a hospitable and welcoming destination.
While the tourism market has been reduced drastically
the world over owing to the economic crisis,
KwaZulu-Natal has no doubt that it is well positioned

Michael Mabuyakhulu

to use its competitive advantage, its mouth-watering

MEC: Department of Economic Development and Tourism

tourism offerings, to lure even greater numbers of

Provincial Government of KwaZulu-Natal
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Chairperson’s foreword
It is with pleasure that I present to you, our stakeholders, the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism (TKZN) Authority’s annual
report for the financial year 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009.
It is our mandate to grow tourism in the province so as to effect socio-economic change for the betterment of our
people. I am confident that this annual report will give you the insight into the amount of work we did to achieve
the mandate through the implementation of our revived strategy. At the forefront of this strategy is the vision to
position the province of KwaZulu-Natal as Africa’s leading tourism destination, nationally and internationally. TKZN
has been, and remains, steadfast in living up to its key mandate of delivering on the strategy and objectives.
We recognise that our key objective as the Authority is to ensure that tourism makes a significant contribution to
the province’s economic development, and as such our strategy emphasises the fundamental principles of
cooperative governance, partnerships, leveraging of resources and continued transformation of the sector. During
the period under review, we as TKZN Authority engaged our various stakeholders as we embarked on the road to
better shape and sharpen the implementation of the province’s 2008 – 2012 tourism strategy.
The TKZN provincial tourism strategy 2008 – 2012 positions KwaZulu-Natal in the global and national tourism
markets as South Africa enters an era which will include its hosting of the 2010 FIFA World Cup. The FIFA World
Cup is expected to open major new tourism markets not only for KwaZulu-Natal but for South Africa as a whole.
We are cognisant of the fact that as much as 2010 is a critical milestone and will provide us with the opportunity to
take centre stage in the world, we need to ensure that the fundamentals are in place. We need to ensure that our
levels of service are excellent, that our visitors feel safe and secured. If we do this right, we will be able to position
our tourism industry at the leading edge of global competitiveness and ensure sustainable tourism growth well
beyond 2010. At TKZN we are critical in driving the tourism agenda not only for 2010 but in the run-up to and
beyond the World Cup.
The face of South Africa, and indeed that of KwaZulu-Natal will never be the same again after the tournament. We
should ensure that once the red carpet has been put away we linger in the memories of the spectators and viewers,
and that these memories compel them to travel back to our spectacular destinations to further explore the wonders
of the Zulu Kingdom.

It is our mandate to grow tourism in the province
so as to effect socio-economic change for the betterment of our people
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During the year under review, we have also initiated a

Our marketing of the province has been aggressive

number of programmes and embarked on road shows

and we have continued with resource allocation that

aimed at creating awareness of the importance of the

was biased towards sustaining, protecting and

tourism sector, and the contribution of tourism to

growing our domestic tourism market. We have

KwaZulu-Natal and its stakeholders. TKZN remains

created platforms to address concerns, share

committed to the transformation, empowerment and

consumer research and provide feedback that ensured

integration of the historically disadvantaged

that all stakeholders were able to respond to market

individuals into the tourism economy, hence

needs, thereby improving the competitiveness of our

embracing the TKZN BBBEE Charter and scorecard,

destination.

and our commitment to champion its full
implementation.

In conclusion I would like to thank the CEO,
Ndabo Khoza, TKZN management and staff for

TKZN has proven its ability to rise above inherent

making us proud to be associated with the Authority.

challenges and has leaped to a greater and higher

This appreciation is also extended to the board and its

performance output mode. However, it is

committees for their leadership and commitment to

acknowledged that there are still challenges that

the good cause of TKZN.

confront us going forward. This brings me a great
feeling of satisfaction and these sentiments are
equally shared by the board of TKZN.

I thank you all and wish you the best in the year
ahead.

We have had a very busy year at TKZN lobbying,
chasing, assisting, developing relationships – and the
object of many of the things that have been done has
been to raise the profile of the province. We have
identified the fact that for us to achieve our mandate
we have to build strong relations with key national
government bodies, domestic trade and also
strengthen the important relevant partnerships.
This is a very involved long-term process but we are

Tholakele Dlamini

making good progress in nurturing these relationships.

Chairperson
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Board
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Tholakele Dlamini
Chairperson

Dr Seshi Chonco
Deputy Chairperson

Sadhasivan Naidoo

Zamo Gwala

Nonduduzo Kheswa

Kevin Pretorius

Mthokozisi Khubone

Stella Khumalo

Ndabo Khoza
Chief Executive Officer ex officio
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Nina Freysen-Pretorius

Shakila Maharaj

Kishore Harie

Nomusa Zethu Qunta

Yasmin Bacus

Sthembiso Mshengu

Previous board members up until December 2008:
Dr Seshi Chonco Chairperson
Yasmin Bacus

Alan Vels

Bunny Bhoola

Dr Thuthukile Goba

Jeph Mtshali

Zamo Gwala

Sahlulele Luzipho

Nonduduzo Kheswa

Shakila Maharaj

Khulani Mkhize

Themba Mthethwa

Busisiwe Mnganga (resigned July 2008)

Krish Naidoo

Sthembiso Mshengu
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Chief Executive Officer’s report
Tourism KwaZulu-Natal, established in terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act of 1996, and amended in 2002, is
responsible, directly and indirectly, for the development, promotion and marketing of tourism into and within the
province. For us to achieve our mandate we have formulated and revised a five-year strategy for the period –
effective 2008 to 2012 – that guides our activities, and takes into account key events during the medium term.
During 2008, the first year of implementation, it was prudent to prioritise important issues so as to make the
greatest impact with limited resources in order to achieve our mandate.
At the time of preparing this report the global economic recession had negatively impacted on a number of our key
tourism source markets, especially Europe and the USA. Fortunately, KwaZulu-Natal continues to enjoy a lion’s share
of the South African or domestic tourism market which is an important source market for the province.
As per the recommendations of the Tourism Resilience Group established by the United Nations World Tourism
Organisation (UNWTO), we intensified our focus on domestic tourism, with particular attention to the marketing
and packaging of the many events that took place within the province.
Strategic leadership
We believe we have a strategic leadership role in terms of domestic tourism marketing, the custodianship of the
tourism brand and what it stands for, and how we market ourselves.
Leadership in this respect is important as the province is expected to align its domestic marketing with the
international activities of South African Tourism (SAT) so as to best benefit from and leverage off these efforts.
It is imperative that we continuously review the environment in which we work, to ensure we respond accordingly
and take into account important future activities. To this end, we developed a sales growth strategy that was
informed by our observation of market activities and the need to influence tourism packages being sold by tour
operators.
A market mapping analysis of outbound tour operator activities, in our key tourism source markets, enabled us to
reduce our above-the-line marketing activities and rather encourage tour operators to package and sell our
destination. We reviewed the roles and responsibilities of our trade representatives in the UK and Germany and
subsequently transformed their activities to those of a general sales agency, which has become a necessity.

8
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Generic promotion and brand positioning

which is to grow tourism by ensuring that there is

It is important that TKZN provides an umbrella

good geographic spread, including areas that were

approach to promoting the province and creates an

previously disadvantaged and encouraging tourists to

enabling environment within which all district

extend their length of stay.

municipalities, communities, private sector and other
stakeholders can optimally market their products. This
ensures brand alignment and prevents brand
confusion in the market.

In 2006, TKZN completed an Insight Activator brand
development process that looked at the positioning of
our brand, our key tourist “hooks” and how we
needed to communicate this at a domestic level. Our

During the year under review, we critically assessed

plan was to commence a similar international exercise

our role and the need to influence buying decisions as

that would inform us how best to market ourselves

opposed to simply creating awareness, hence the

based on our tourism offerings, as well as ensure that

development of a sales growth strategy and an

we are responding properly to international tourist

approach that brought us closer to the transaction.

demands. In doing this we would be putting our best

Our market mapping exercise, undertaken during the
year, provided crucial information about the KZN

foot forward and leveraging off our key attractions by
using them to advance our other tourism experiences.

tourism market. This included insight into which

However, it is essential that the national brand-

operators are selling tour packages to the province,

realignment process, which commenced in 2007, is

what components of our product they are selling and

first concluded as it is essential in guiding us in how

their reasons for their focus. Importantly, we also

best to position the province compared to other

gathered information on those who are not selling

provinces. Unfortunately, the national brand

tourism to the province and their reasons. This will

realignment process was not completed during 2008.

enable us to better manage the return on investment

Once concluded, we will be able to progress with

based on the activities that are taking place.

confidence.

The market mapping will also ensure that there is

The 2010 FIFA World Cup is another opportunity for

alignment between what Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is

us to build our competitiveness. With 2010 the main

marketing and what the trade is selling. In this way

focus is to not only get as many people as possible to

we can begin to influence the type of product being

visit the province, but also to spend as much time as

sold based on our overall objective for the province,

possible here experiencing the broader parts of the

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ANNUAL REPORT 2008/9
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Chief Executive Officer’s report continued
province. We have engaged with our tour operators,

Responsible demand-driven product development

encouraging them to start selling structured tours that

We believe we need to facilitate responsible demand-

include experiences which we believe will be more

driven product development, and promote accessibility

attractive to the tourists visiting the province at this time.

that takes into account the disabled. We recognise that in

We have made reasonable progress on this front and we

tourism our image is vital. Constant product improvement

believe we will achieve positive results.

as well as investment in new products so as to diversify

We hosted a successful Indaba 2008 which, with 13 200
delegates, broke all previous records for the event. We

10

our tourism offerings is essential to the improvement of
our competitiveness and image as tourism destination.

are also thrilled that Indaba will again be hosted by KZN

While creating new products, we are mindful of the need

in 2010. This will give us the opportunity to favourably

to ensure that it is done in a responsible and sensitive

position the province as well as the host city, Durban, for

manner, taking into account our other attractions such as

the 2010 World Cup soccer event. It will also provide an

the heritage routes, which we need to maintain and

opportunity to engage in last minutes deals leading up to

sustain for the benefit of tourism and future generations.

the 2010 event.

However, compared to some of our national competitors

During the year we also focused on business tourism. As

we continue to lag in the pace of tourism product

this is a niche market for the province, it is important that

investment. We have also been unable to attract some of

we have a clear concept of our focus in the business

the global tourism brands to the province, which impact

tourism arena. We have been decisive in identifying key

on the competitiveness and perceptions of destinations.

business tourism opportunities, in particular conferences

Transformation

and meetings. We also played a meaningful role in

Transformation remains a critical issue for our industry

influencing the bids of our key partners and providing

and we believe that our focus on this issue needs to be

support in the bidding process for important events.

strong. Historically, tourism has been controlled by a

The new international airport is nearing completion, and

handful of powerful companies and previously

while it will be officially opened in 2010, we need to start

disadvantage individuals (PDIs) were considered as

marketing it and its advantages now. Emirates airline’s

employees or entertainers without enjoying meaningful

decision, during 2008, to delay its direct flights to

economic benefits. We want to make sure that we bring

KwaZulu-Natal was disappointing. Nevertheless, we

our communities into the tourism mainstream, enabling

undertook a lot of “behind-the-scenes” work to ensure

them not only to become product owners and service

that the confidence in the destination was reinstated and

providers but also empowered employees with

to improve our competitiveness as a direct flight

meaningful roles in management. We believe that this

destination. Our hard work has been rewarded with

can be done within the scope of the tourism broad-based

Emirates introducing a daily direct flight between Durban

black economic empowerment (BBBEE) charter which has

and Dubai effective from October 2009.

now been gazetted as part of the sector codes.

The lack of direct international flights, as well as regional

We have accelerated our business advisory and strategic

flights from within the continent, to KwaZulu-Natal has

support services and now provide weekly workshops and

resulted in limited access and connectivity and remains

the attendance by aspiring entrepreneurs has been

one of our main challenges.

encouraging. This initiative was based on the need to

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ANNUAL REPORT 2008/9

ensure that before entrepreneurs venture into a tourism

Growing tourism through knowledge management

business, they are equipped with the correct knowledge

It is important for us to understand how the tourism

and have strategic industry support. Access to the tourism

industry works and the trends affecting it. As a result, we

market continues to be a major challenge particularly for

have retained a very strong tourism knowledge and

the PDIs. We believe that our sales growth strategy will

research capability. This has enabled us to develop our

assist in addressing this through targeted business

strategies based on sound tourism intelligence. We have

linkages based on our joint marketing agreements with

also created platforms to enable our sub-destinations and

our outbound trade partners.

other sectors to acquire this industry knowledge. Thus,

Service excellence
The enhancement of service excellence is crucial because
as an organisation TKZN does not have a product that it
sells yet our marketing promises visitors a memorable
experience. That promise must be fulfilled by the product
owners and we are judged as a destination on how well
they do this. Visitors to KwaZulu-Natal who experience
bad service will tell others and our promise that “we are
beyond expectations, within reach” will amount to
nothing because we have failed to provide good service.
It is, therefore, important for us to champion the
enhancement of service excellence through structured
training programmes, structured quality assurance
mechanisms and structured reward and recognition
programmes, as we are doing.

their tourism marketing strategies have complemented
our tourism activities. This has also allowed us to target
the correct profile of tourism source markets as well as
future investors. In doing this we have built a structured
approach to our marketing. In our market segmentation
we have continuously looked at the source markets and
the segments that we need to be marketing to, at both a
domestic and international level. Therefore, we are very
clear in terms of which countries we must target and
what to do in those markets.
Strategic partnership and alignment
As far as our strategic partnerships are concerned we
have accelerated our engagement with the tourism trade
through our quarterly tourism growth forums. This
involves sharing information and/or experiences with
locally-based trade so that they benefit from the activities

Our Service Excellence Awards have been in place for

in which we are involved, and we ensure that we are all

seven years and during the period under review we added

targeting the same markets. In this way we have been

more categories to ensure an inclusive approach. We also

able to maximise the resources we have as a province.

continued our relationship with our key partners, i.e.

We have tried to share as much business intelligence and

SATSA, FEDHASA, SAACI, Tourism Grading Council of

relevant information as we can with the trade, and we

South Africa and the Chaîne des Rôtisseurs. Taking into

are aware that some have found this useful. Now we

account the importance of service excellence as we

need to strengthen this relationship. We have also

approach the 2010 FIFA World Cup, the national and the

continued with our endeavours to influence the national

provincial tourism conferences during the year had service

agenda so as to ensure that KwaZulu-Natal is considered

excellence as their theme and focus. In addition, the

in all the decisions taken. There are a number of

National Department of Environment Affairs and Tourism

structures in which we are involved, from MINMEC and

initiated a broader service excellence programme and

MIPTEC to the Provincial Tourism Forum, Provincial

TKZN is participating as one of the key role players in this

Tourism Committee, CEOs’ forum, marketing managers’

regard.

forum and researchers’ forum. Therefore, we have in

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ANNUAL REPORT 2008/9
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Chief Executive Officer’s report continued
place a fine balance between stakeholder management

organisation’s management team was encouraging and

and engagement and our focus on what we want to

ensured that we remained committed to our vision. We

achieve.

would like to thank her for all the support and wish her

Conclusion

well in her new portfolio.

The TKZN Board changed in December 2008 and on

TKZN now forms part of the Department of Economic

behalf of management and staff I would like to thank

Development and Tourism under the leadership of MEC,

Dr Seshi Chonco, who was our chairperson, and the

Mike Mabuyakhulu. We welcome him and look forward

board in supporting the vision of the organisation. We

to his future guidance and support.

also welcome our new board and our new Chairperson,

Lastly, I would like to thank the TKZN management team

Tholakele Dlamini, as well as express our appreciation for

and staff for their support, belief in our vision and the

the guidance they have provided over the final quarter of

fine work that they have done in the past financial year.

the financial year. Their guidance has set the tone and

I hope they will keep up the good work, it is really

direction for what we have to achieve in future as an

appreciated.

organisation.
We have also had a change in shareholder. TKZN was
previously part of the Department of Arts, Culture and
Tourism under the leadership of MEC, Weziwe Thusi.

12

During her three years as head of this portfolio she

Ndabo Khoza

provided us with excellent support. Her belief in the

Chief Executive Officer
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Executive management

Ndabo Khoza
Chief Executive Officer

Nqobile Majozi
General Manager:
Marketing and Communications

Naleli Wasa
Chief Operating Officer

Wellington Ngcobo
General Manager:
Corporate Services

James Seymour
General Manager:
Tourism Information Services
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Marketing and Communications
Despite the challenges presented by the global downturn, Tourism KwaZulu-Natal (TKZN) is proud to note that KwaZuluNatal (KZN) still dominates the domestic market share and its international presence continues to be strongly felt. This was
achieved through continued belief and understanding that consistent messages and presence develops brands. It is for this
reason that KwaZulu-Natal participated in relevant South African Tourism (SAT) road shows and exhibitions in the domestic
and international markets.
One of the biggest hindrances to travel to KZN is air connection and KwaZulu-Natal has suffered due to the lack of
international carriers flying directly to Durban. In the year under review, Emirates announced that they would be flying
directly to Durban from October 2009, which is excellent news for KZN. This therefore sets the scene for supporting the
new route since all other airlines will be watching the Emirates Durban Route business case closely before they follow suit.
From a tourist and tourism trade perspective, this announcement increases the ease of selling the destination.
During the year under review, TKZN took full advantage of leveraging in the Public Relations (PR) unit through all its events
and tourism activities. The image of the destination was seriously challenged by the xenophobia attacks which occurred in
the province, and other general safety and security concerns about the destination.
In the tourism industry it is critical that the level of service rendered by the trade remains high. Especially in light of the
2010 Soccer World Cup event and the international nature of KwaZulu-Natal’s tourists, service quality needs to be of an
international standard. In order to continually remind the tourism trade and to ensure that the quality of service remains
high, the annual Service Excellence Awards were again one of the division’s key focus areas. To raise awareness about the
awards, there was ample advertising and PR before, during and after the awards ceremony. Furthermore, Ladysmith Black
Mambazo, the first South African group to win a Grammy Award and a music group whose members hail from KZN, was
one of the recipients of a Service Excellence Award.
TKZN is a firm believer that the strongest marketing medium is word-of-mouth (WOM) and therefore continued to educate
and expose the destination to the media, tourism trade, international VIPs and potential ambassadors by hosting them in
the province. Since KZN is a destination with so many stories to tell, the people who have been hosted take home with
them salient messages that KZN is indeed “beyond expectations, but within their reach”.
Brand and leisure marketing
The brand communication strategy ensured not only an all year round media presence, but also ensured that all media
types are represented.
In a bid to increase consumer education about KZN and awareness of KZN as a tourist destination, TKZN participated in a
number of domestic consumer shows and exhibitions including the Getaway Show, Soweto Festival, shopping centre
activations at Sandton City and Canal Walk in Cape Town. Promotional campaigns were conducted at selected shows to

14
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assist with the preference centre registration as part of

Exciting events provide a reason for tourists to come to a

the database collection exercise. On the international

destination, even if it is for a short visit. Furthermore,

platforms, TKZN participated at Vakantiebeurs Travel Expo

such events allow the leveraging of the brand awareness

in the Netherlands, which was followed by a workshop

of the destination and sub-destinations, as well as

with trade from Belgium and the Netherlands.

leveraging on media awareness. Also, it is one of the

Business tourism and events
SAT statistics show that whilst the business tourism
traveller only accounts for 5% of arrivals, the value

ways of ensuring geographic spread. The events team
continued to support the events that position KwaZuluNatal as a must-see destination.

(spend) is significantly higher compared to leisure

Trade and international marketing

travellers. Furthermore, a higher percentage of visitors to

Past research done by SAT shows that internationally,

the KwaZulu-Natal destination intends coming back with

once consumers have collected information about South

their families for leisure purposes.

Africa and have made a decision about coming to South

The business tourism unit therefore continued to work
with bid partners in selling KwaZulu-Natal in platforms
such as Meetings Africa, Exhibitions for Incentive Business
Travel and Meetings (EIBTM), IMEX and Incentive Travel
(IT) and Meetings Expo (ME), selling the destination for
conferences, meetings, incentives and events.

Africa, they still buy their holidays through travel agencies
rather than buying online. This is due to South Africa
being a long-haul destination, and due to a lack of
confidence in the information that they have about the
destination. It is therefore important that when the
international trade sells KwaZulu-Natal they are confident
and knowledgeable about the province. Tools such as

TKZN participated in the staging of the Microsoft Tech Ed

marketing collateral and increased brochure exposure

conference held at the Durban ICC. TKZN conducted a

opportunities were developed to support the trade, to

“meet and greet“ for conference delegates at the airport,

help boost their confidence and thus assist them in selling

undertook branding at the event, manned an information

the destination. Joint marketing agreements (JMAs) were

desk, arranged access to the conference for TKZN staff

also signed with the trade which shares TKZN’s

who work in the IT department, included provincial

enthusiasm and dedication in increasing tourist arrivals.

promotional material into delegate bags, and took out a

Furthermore, opportunities for exposure to understand

full page advert in the Microsoft Magazine. This was the

KZN were offered through SAT workshops, educationals

first time this conference was held in KwaZulu-Natal.

and agents training and trade exhibitions. The trade team

In the year under review, TKZN led the delegation to

worked on improving the monitoring and approval

Nairobi to conduct destination marketing to the tourism

process for the JMAs. This was done by developing a

trade, media, corporate, government and athletic clubs.

process that allows for a three-year relationship, where
the return on investment (ROI) is clearly measureable and

Partners at the activation were the Durban ICC, City of

the ring-fencing of the current activities.

Durban and the Nepad office. The main aim was to
profile the destination as an event destination with the
Comrades Marathon used as a hook.
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Marketing and Communications continued
PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Improved media mix and advertising

Brand communication strategy

The role of advertising is to inspire consumers. During the

During the period under review, TKZN’s aggressive brand

year under review, TKZN successfully managed to

positioning continued through a strategic, above-the-line

integrate electronic, printed and outdoor advertising in

and below-the-line presence domestically. Furthermore,

different campaigns. Furthermore, TKZN managed to

this was complemented by the brand association with the

inspire consumers through the activations that were done

Sharks’ Rugby promotion platforms. As a result, according

at toll plazas and during domestic consumer shows.

to the 2009 Domestic Market Brand Monitor Report, the
noting of the Zulu Kingdom brand reflected a significant
increase. The report further indicated that levels of
familiarity with respect to KwaZulu-Natal and the eight
sub-destinations also showed some improvement. The
report also indicated an increase in the proportion of
consumers associating the Zulu Kingdom brand with the
concepts of leisure and holidays.

Tourism month was started as an initiative to get locals to
travel. TKZN was able to grow the 2008 Tourism Month
launch by making it twofold. There was an official launch
ceremony followed by a media and key stakeholderhosting programme. This not only raised the profile of the
event, but also helped raise the profile of the destination
and sub-destination through extensive media coverage.

Indaba

Furthermore, in preparation for the event, the focus was

After a successful Indaba 2008, the bid contract was

on the formation of partnerships in order to ensure

extended to KwaZulu-Natal from 2009 to 2010 to allow

effective cooperation and ownership in making the event

KwaZulu-Natal to host Indaba 2010. For the first time in

a success with stakeholders such as the Department of

the history of Indaba, the domestic media participation

Arts, Culture and Tourism, KZN Wildlife and the hosting

during Indaba outnumbered the international media, and

sub-destinations which included the uMkhanyakude

this meant that a greater number of domestic audiences

District Municipality, the iSimangaliso Wetland Park and

were reached and educated about Indaba and tourism

the Elephant Coast Tourism Association.

developments.
Trade Quarterly Growth Forum
The Trade Quarterly Growth Forum was launched to
strengthen relations with trade and to keep the KZN trade
updated on local and international activities. In order to
add further value to the forum, TKZN identified speakers
from the tourism support industries to address the trade.
To date, there have been speakers from Eskom, the Liquor
Board, the eThekwini Municipality 2010 Strategic Projects
Unit and the provincial Department of Safety and Security.
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Tourism month
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Social corporate responsibility (Women’s Day and

SMME programme

AIDS Day)

A big highlight was that one of the SMMEs, who has

There are two events that marked an innovative way in

developed through the TKZN SMME development

which the organisation contributed to society without

(incubator) programme, was recognised as one the

spending any financial resources. The first was the

winners of the Service Excellence Awards, and went on to

celebration of Women’s Day where TKZN female staff

become the overall winner of the 2009 ETEYA Awards.

members donated their time, energy, but most
importantly love, to destitute children of Umlazi Place of
Safety. TKZN ladies spent what was supposed to be their
“Women’s Day”, giving care to children at the centre. The
ladies spent the day engaging in activities that included
bathing the children, preparing breakfast, cleaning up
and preparing lunch and assisting in taking care of the
children.

Trade strategy
In order to be successfully packaged by the trade, it is of
extreme importance that the trade shares the vision of
the destination. TKZN embarked on a project to
understand the trade both nationally and internationally.
This included the understanding of key players, volume
drivers in key source markets and areas of opportunity to
increase market share. This resulted in KwaZulu-Natal

The second event took place during World AIDS Day,

developing a market map for the two key source markets;

1 December. TKZN collected donations from staff and

Germany and UK. Furthermore, this exercise resulted in

their relatives (ranging from clothes to toys), which were

the development of robust JMA partnerships with key

given to the Etshelimnyama Drop Inn Centre, which is a

trade in key source markets. This project gave an

centre that looks after AIDS orphans.

opportunity for TKZN to engage 12 senior management

Destination awareness rollout – new segments
As part of attracting the “young and upcoming segment”
that are in the LSM 5-7 category, TKZN implemented an

of the biggest tour operators internationally and to do an
in-country tour of KwaZulu-Natal, which culminated in a
golf event in KZN.

activation plan targeting this market segment. This was

The Sardine Festival

done in three phases: firstly by participating in the

As a result of the partnership between the Ugu District

Soweto Festival, secondly by strengthening relationships

Municipality and TKZN, a Sardine Festival was launched in

with media targeting the same segments, i.e. Metro

Durban at the IMAX theatre, showcasing a movie about

Igagasi and Jozi FM, and thirdly, by hosting selected

the Sardine Run. The movie, “Wild Ocean”, has become

media and working closely with them in developing

an international phenomenon and it has already been

destination profiling messages.

shown in the USA.
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Marketing and Communications continued
INTERNATIONAL MARKETING – Brand marketing (Leisure)
Goal
To improve brand
awareness
in key source markets
and profile destination
internationally

Performance indicator Target
International
Maintain or grow
consumer shows –
share in core markets
aligned to SAT

Performance results
Participated in key domestic and international
consumer shows including Vakantiebeurs Travel
Expo in the Netherlands and Holiday World Show
in Ireland

Brand development
process facilitation

Agreed brand
Launch new
positioning with
brand key
provincial stakeholders
aligned with national
positioning

The process was put on hold pending outcomes
of the national brand review

Implementation of
brand communication
strategy ensuring all
year round presence

Marketing campaign
into the new financial
year through ATL and
BTL platforms

Media implementation
as per communication
strategy, e.g. TV and
radio advertising:

Brand media implementation plan included TV,
print advertising in eight publications, and five
billboards around Gauteng and Western Cape
between eight to twelve months

Tactical: during
identified low seasons

All-year presence through welcome billboard at
Van Reenens Pass and Durban Airport

Print: at least two
magazine publications

The destination continued to be profiled through
DVD promotion on SAA international flights and
domestic flights

Outdoor: billboards in
Gauteng, Western
Ensured consistent presence in Sawubona
Cape and Van Reenens magazine
Pass, Free State
Joint promotions
with other strong/big
brands, e.g.
MTN/Vodacom

Implementation of at
least one promotion
with another strong
brand

This was achieved through a TKZN agreement with
The Sharks on the Shark Bite programme on
SuperSport channel. Furthermore, the destination
was profiled on the match day programmes during
Super 14 and Curry Cup Rugby matches
The destination was profiled strategically in the
Indaba Daily and MTN Fashion Week Daily with
four insertions in each
TV advert was flighted during the live broadcast of
the Vodacom Durban July event
Joint promotion activation with Thompsons Tours
at four major consumer shows which TKZN
participates
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INTERNATIONAL MARKETING – Brand marketing (Leisure) continued
Goal
CRM programme
activation and
management
optimising business
tourism databases

Performance indicator Target
Increased share of the Implement action of
holiday market
an appropriate CRM
programme

Consumer/trade
education about the
province and its
offering/tourism
experience

Development and
production of
innovative branded
collateral and POS
material required to
market the province

Destination marketing Brand alignment
between national,
support provision
provincial and
destination brands

Greater cooperation
and synergy between
the destinations and
TKZN

Performance results
The CRM programme was activated through the
distribution of consumer e-newsletters using
database collected from consumer travel shows

Ensure comprehensive, 2008/09 travel guides, accommodation brochures,
generic and equitable KZN branded maps and promotional DVDs were
coverage of
produced
destination through
brochures, DVDs and
other collateral
Regular
communication
between the brand
(TKZN) and the subdestinations

Facilitated the brand workshop with iLembe,
uMzinyathi, Amajuba, Sisonke, uThukela and
Zululand District Municipalities

Timeous production of TKZN gave support towards the production of the
destination brochures North Coast and the Drakensberg destination
and other collateral
brochures
Activation of the
MOU deliverables

Defend intra-provincial Domestic destination
market share
marketing campaign

The South Coast was profiled through the Sardine
Festival promotional campaign in the print media
Destination promotion on regional radio
(East Coast Radio) for the local KZN market
during Tourism Month

Providing platform for
SMMEs for market
access

Eight SMMEs were provided a marketing platform
at four major consumer shows

Ensure participation by
at least two SMMEs at
each of the domestic
shows above
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Marketing and Communications continued
DOMESTIC MARKETING (Trade)
Goal
To improve trade
relations with key
trade partners

Performance indicator
Regular
communication and
liaison with key trade
partners

Target
Success in establishing
and maintaining
relationships with
travel trade in
respective markets

Performance results
Improved trade relations and better
communication with KZN trade partners
Did sales calls to top leading trade (leading
inbound) and outbound strategically during
trade shows
Maintained tourism quarterly growth forum once a
quarter or post trade shows
Maintained and enhanced the trade database for
the key source markets

To establish
profitability-driven
relationships to
increase arrivals

Structured trade
support system. Enter
into sales-driven joint
marketing agreements
and cooperative
initiatives

Level of success in
managing and
sustaining improved
trade relations in key
markets

Increased brochure listings for KZN

To create demand for
KZN domestically

Trade e-marketing
programme

Joint marketing
agreements with
selected local and
international tourism
tour operators with a
view to stimulate
increased domestic
and regional tourist
arrivals into the
province

Increased level of cooperative agreements and
JMA with strategic partners in key markets

Roll-out of TRM
programme for trade
aligned to SAT’s trade
programmes

Domestic trade
familiarisation trips

Increased sales oriented/call to action trade
advertisement

More strategic and targeted sales volume
initiatives

Implemented trade familiarisation trips from core
markets
Developed a collective hosting programme, with
targets and objective(s) for the fiscal year
Enhanced sales opportunities by inclusion of KZN
itineraries in trade brochures
Hosted media and trade from Germany, UK, USA,
Africa, Middle East and Europe post business
tourism shows/key events
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DOMESTIC MARKETING (Trade) continued
Goal
To improve trade
awareness of KZN
as a destination

Performance indicator
Branded trade
collateral and
domestic and
international
trade workshops
participation

Target
Level of success in
providing marketing
and sales platform
domestically and
increased arrivals
from key markets

Performance results
Participated in international trade exhibitions
aligned with SAT:
• WTM – London
• ITB – Germany
• India and pre-WTM workshops
• Spain – Fitur
• Middle East
• BIT – Italy
• Africa trade workshops
Maintained Tourism Quarterly Growth Forum

Better understanding
of domestic and
KZN trade for
maximum benefits

Trade brochure listings Participation on at
least one show per
core market (Gauteng,
Cape Province)

Participated at the following shows:
• DStv Getaway
• Cape Outdoor Show
• Soweto Festival

SMME trade
marketing support
provision

Contribution towards
tourism industry
transformation and
development

Assisted SMMEs to gain access to the tourism
market by:

Understanding of
SMMEs’ tactical
and strategical
participation in
selective trade and
consumer shows

Produced SMME marketing collateral
Developed trade linkages and support for KZN
SMMEs
SMMEs’ participation in selected trade and
consumer exhibitions
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Marketing and Communications continued
INTERNATIONAL MARKETING (Trade)
Goal
To grow arrivals from
UK and Germany,
KZN’s key source
markets

Performance indicator
Maintain market
representation via
reps (Ethos/Tourlink) in
UK and Germany and
Explore Africa/US
market representation

Target
Improved and
increased awareness
of KZN as a
destination in our
core markets
internationally

Performance results
Increased level of volume-driven JMAs
implemented in key source markets by targeting
key trade
Increased listings in brochures of key trade
partners
Did the market mapping of the tourism trade in
the key source markets

To establish
profitability-driven
relationships to grow
arrivals

Joint marketing
agreements,
cooperative initiatives

To create demand for Conduct trade
KZN in core, strategic workshops aligned
and tactical markets in to SAT
line with SAT
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Improved trade
relations with the
key trade and tour
operators in key
source markets

Cooperative agreements resulted in an increase in
brochure listing by tour operators in key source
markets

Maintain/grow market Participated in international trade exhibitions
aligned with SAT:
share in UK and
• WTM – London
Germany
• ITB – Germany
• India and pre-WTM workshops
• Spain – Fitur
• Middle East
• Africa
• BIT – Italy

BUSINESS TOURISM
Goal
Profile KZN as a
business tourism (BT)
destination

Performance indicator
Increased awareness
about the province as
a business tourism
destination

Target
Destination
participation in
selected Business
Tourism Exhibitions/
Shows and Business
Tourism workshops:
• Meetings Africa
(Gauteng)
• IMEX (Frankfurt)
• EIBTM (Barcelona)
• IT&ME (Chicago)
• ICCA Conference
• Scandinavia
• USA

Performance results
TKZN participated at the following exhibitions
during the year under review:
• Meetings Africa
• IMEX
• IT&ME
• EIBTM
• Soccerex
• Kenya Activations
Adverts were placed in the following publications:
• KZN Business Guide
• Conference, Exhibitions and Events Guide
• Incentive.com

Production of business
tourism marketing
collateral
Assisting destination
BT partners in
attracting new
conferences into KZN

Provide conferences
with leads to the
business tourism
industry and incentives
into the province

Use International
Congress and
Convention
Association (ICCA)
database for sourcing
new conferences
Participate in the
activities of Society of
Incentives and Travel
Executives (SITE) to
attract incentives to
the province

TKZN participated in a Kenya Activation in
partnership with eThekwini Municipality and
Durban ICC
TKZN participated at the Meetings Africa tourism
exhibition together with Durban Tourism, Durban
ICC, The Conference Company and Vawdas
Promotions

Facilitation of site visits
to the ICC or other
relevant venue
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Marketing and Communications continued
BUSINESS TOURISM continued
Goal
Cofunding bids and
delegate boosting
promotional activity
(for associations and
other institutions)

Profile destination
through strategic
selection of events

Performance indicator Target
Provide delegating
Number of bids
actions for the
supported
following:
• International Youth
Conference 2010
• World Health
Tourism Conference
2010
• 11th World
Filtration
Conference 2012
• World Energy
Conference 2013
• Congress of
International Union
of Architects 2014
• International
Industrial Relations
Association 2015
• International
Council for Physical
Activity and Fitness
Research Conference
• Routes Forum 2011
Bid in partnership
with ACSA
Delegate participation
Increase arrivals and
length of stay for the
events

Provide technical
and/or financial
support for major
events taking place
in KZN
Production of an
events brochures for
the province

Implement provincial
tourism plan for 2010
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Progress made in
implementation of
various elements of
the plan
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Achievement of the
deliverables as per the
plan

Performance results
Provided bid support and delegate boosting for
the following conferences:
• International Youth Conference 2010
• World Health Tourism Conference 2010
• 11th World Filtration Conference 2012
• World Energy Conference 2013
• Congress of International Union of Architects
2014
• International Industrial Relations Association
2015
• International Council for Physical Activity and
Fitness Research Conference
• Routes Forum 2011 Bid in partnership with
ACSA
• World Water Forum in Turkey
TKZN participated in the delegate boosting
activity on the following conferences:
• World Health Tourism Congress in the
Philippines
• WTTC in Brazil

Provided technical and financial support for the
following events:
• Dusi Canoe Marathon
• Comrades Marathon – Pietermaritzburg
• Amashova Cycle Race
• The Reed Dance
• Splashy Fan – Drakensburg
• Sardine Festival – South Coast
• Swartkop Challenge Battlefields
• MTN Jazz Festival
• UCI Mountain Biking World Championship
Participated and leveraged of the national,
provincial and host city 2010 SWC activities and
initiatives. TKZN participated in the 2010
activations in the following countries:
• Spain (Africa Day)
• Zurich (Fespo Activation)
• Portugal
• South African (Soccerex)

INDABA
Goal
To use Indaba
platform to grow
arrivals from core
markets including
domestic market

Performance indicator Target
JMA reviews and key Increased international
meetings with trade
participation
from key source
markets

Performance results
Got the KZN international representatives in key
source market to market Indaba to drive
international participation

Work closely with SAT
in selecting and
inviting hosted buyers
interested in selling
KZN
Exploit Indaba to drive Joint marketing
agreements
volume into KZN
with key tour
operators

Improved economic
impact

To enhance product/
Hosting programmes/
destination awareness educationals

Quality of trade
Implemented pre/post and during Indaba tours to
meeting during Indaba promote geographic spread

Grow SMME
involvement

Increased number of
Increased strategic partnership meetings for the
SMMEs exhibiting and KZN SMMEs with the key trade
involved in Superfam

SMMEs’ participation

Initiated quality and volume driven JMAs at Indaba
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Marketing and Communications continued
IMAGE BUILDING
Goal
To build a positive
image of the Zulu
Kingdom with regards
to hygiene factors
such as safety, service,
access, health and
infrastructure

Performance indicator
Extent to which the
perceptions about the
province enhance a
positive image in key
domestic and
international target
markets

Target
Utilise domestic and
international media to
communicate positive
messages about the
Zulu Kingdom

Performance results
Used key events as an opportunity to expose
media to the tourism experiences of KZN
These included international and national media
that attended Indaba 2008
The CEO’s breakfast, prior to Indaba 2008, was
used as a platform to focus on KZN events that
had the potential to stimulate tourism and grow
business for KZN. Furthermore, TKZN highlighted
developments, achievements and opportunities in
KZN, which received wide positive media coverage
Hosted international media at Durban Fashion
Week 2008
The 2008 Service Excellence Awards received wide
publicity
Managed media around issues of climate change,
economic recession, KZN’s preparedness for the
2010 Soccer World Cup and xenophobia

To build a positive
image of the Zulu
Kingdom with regards
to hygiene factors
such as safety,
service, access,
health and
infrastructure
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Implement a VIP
hosting programme
for brand
endorsement
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Special guest
programmes to host
influential personalities
and celebrities,
thereby creating PR
platforms for brand
endorsement and
image building

Hosted Dr Scot Rains, a world renowned tourism
journalist from the USA, who specialises in
accessible tourism issues, who addressed provincial
media on issues of accessible tourism and the
good service he received at the Elephant Coast
and Durban
Hosted a total of eleven Metro FM executives who
were in Durban for various activities including the
SABC “School Shoes Drop-off” campaign. TKZN
used the platform to host the Metro FM
delegation in order to strengthen relations and
moreover to showcase what the destination has to
offer

IMAGE BUILDING continued
Goal
To build the image of
KZN

Performance indicator
Extent of positive
media reports
regarding the hygiene
issues in the province

Target
Lobbying the relevant
authorities to deal
with the areas of
responsibility
regarding tourism
related issues

Performance results
Continued to work closely with the Department of
Arts, Culture and Tourism, the South African Police
Service, the Department of Community Safety and
Liaison and the eleven district municipalities on
educational programme to create awareness about
the importance of tourism in various communities

Lobby tourism players
to give excellent
service, and
communicate
positively about the
destination to
consumers

The Service Excellence Campaign on radio and in
newspapers continued to encourage product
owners to compete in providing excellent service.
TKZN worked closely with media and business
partners as well as stakeholders in ensuring the
campaign’s success
Workshops were held in all eight destinations
within KZN

Extent of trade and
consumer
understanding of the
role and functions of
TKZN by means of a
trade and consumer
survey

Facilitate regular trade
engagements, led by
CEO

Trade Quarterly Growth Forums were held with
trade
In addition, a bimonthly electronic newsletter was
distributed to all consumers and trade members
listed on TKZN’s extensive data base
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Marketing and Communications continued
MEDIA LEVERAGE
Goal
To ensure media
leverage around
events in the province
supported by TKZN

To enhance the
relationship between
TKZN and the media

Performance indicator
The extent of media
leverage for the Zulu
Kingdom and its eight
destinations

Improved
communication
between TKZN and
the media

Target
Identify and
implement PR and
media leverage
opportunities of
the following events
supported by the
Marketing Business
Unit:
• Dusi Canoe
Marathon
• A1 Grand Prix
• Midmar Mile
• Durban Fashion
Week
• Comrades
Marathon
• Sardine Festival
• Royal Reed Dance
• Loerie Awards

Performance results
Press releases were distributed to media nationally
with respect to:
• Dusi Canoe Marathon
• Midmar Mile
• MEC’s annual media briefing
• Splashy Fen
• Comrades Marathon
• Durban Fashion Week
• Sardine Festival
• Royal Reed Dance
• Loerie Awards
• Tourism Month
• Amashova Cycle Race
• Freedom Route Launch
• Service Excellence Launch 2008
• Indaba

The ratio of positive,
negative media
coverage

Hosted a large contingent of national and
provincial media to experience the Elephant Coast
after the Tourism Month launch

Hosted two journalists from Gagasi FM and
Independent Newspapers who were both Service
Excellence Award winners at the World Travel
Market, thereby providing greater depth of tourism
understanding for those who provide tourism
coverage in the province

Provided PR support for the inaugural launch of
the Sardine Festival in the South Coast

Monitor media on a
daily basis and
conduct monthly
coverage analysis
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Quarterly media briefings were held to which
editors and journalists were invited
Media monitoring was successfully undertaken for
half of the year

MEDIA LEVERAGE continued
Goal
To host corporate
events to profile and
promote the Zulu
Kingdom brand

Performance indicator
The extent of media
leverage for the Zulu
Kingdom and its eight
destinations

Target
Coordinate and
implement the
following corporate
events:
• 2008 Service
Excellence Awards
• CEO’s breakfast at
Indaba
• Superfam Trade
Dinner at Indaba
• Launch of 2008
Tourism Month
• National Amashova
Cycle Race
• Dusi Canoe
Marathon
• SADC Media
Summer Academy

Performance results
The annual Service Excellence Awards were held at
the ICC
CEO’s breakfast, prior to Indaba 2008, was used as
a platform to outline the developments,
achievements and opportunities in KZN
The Superfam trade cocktail networking function
took place at Mangwanani at Sibaya Casino
Tourism Month was launched during the first week
of September at the Elephant Coast
Hosted media from Gauteng and Durban for the
Sardine Festival
Hosted key tourism trade and media to the Dusi
Canoe Marathon with a view to increasing the
profile of this event and the number of tourists
who come to watch this event

Hosted national and provincial media who
participated at the National Amashova Cycle Race
Host domestic and
and later hosted them to experience the South
international media on Coast destination
familiarisation trips,
spread across the
Hosted 22 journalists from the SADC region who
eight destinations
attended the Durban University of Technology’s
Summer Academy. TKZN used this platform to
expose the journalists to the majestic Elephant
Coast in partnership with the trade from Elephant
Coast and iSimangaliso Wetland Park
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Marketing and Communications continued
MEDIA LEVERAGE continued
Goal
To promote the Zulu
Kingdom brand and
corporate identity at
key corporate events

Performance indicator
Extent of Zulu
Kingdom brand
exposure at corporate
events

Target
Support the following
corporate events to
ensure Zulu Kingdom
brand presence:
• Durban Chamber
of Commerce
• KZN Chamber
of Business
• KZN Successful
Alumni
• African Renaissance
Annual Provincial
Tourism Conference

Performance results
TKZN supported the Durban Chamber of
Commerce’s annual dinner
TKZN supported the KZN Successful Alumni event
in London and the African Renaissance event in
KZN
Provided PR support and media assistance for the
Provincial Tourism Conference 2008. Zulu Kingdom
branding was displayed at this event

Ensure greater brand
awareness through
events

Extent of Zulu
Kingdom brand
exposure at corporate
events

Support events to
ensure Zulu Kingdom
brand presence

PR support was given to the following events in
the form of press statements and media packs
welcoming participants and providing information
about the economic and strategic importance of the
events to the province:
• Comrades Marathon
• Duzi Canoe Marathon
• Loerie Awards
• King Shaka Celebrations

Tourism Month

Successful
development and
implementation of the
2007 Tourism Month
programme

Utilise Tourism Month
in September to drive
a media campaign
aimed at promoting
domestic travel

The theme for 2008 Tourism month was “Tourism
responding to climate change”. TKZN then chose
Eco-responsible Tourism as its theme and therefore
launched Tourism Month on the Elephant Coast in
the iSimangaliso Wetland Park, South Africa’s first
World Heritage Site
Furthermore, TKZN used Tourism Month to
encourage people to move around the province
exploring different places away from home

Level of media tourism Regular features on
awareness campaign tourism awareness on
electronic and print
media
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A Tourism Month Calendar was published in two
leading newspapers, the Mercury and Isolezwe,
and a brochure highlighting the events in the
province was printed and distributed
TKZN maximised national exposure through e.tv’s
Sunrise programme, SABC 1’s youth programme
called SHIFT, radio Metro FM DJs’ endorsement of
the province and the destination, an SABC
Morning Live insert during the national launch
programme as well as current affairs news items
on radio stations such as Gagasi and Ukhozi FM.
Print coverage of the event was obtained in
provincial and Gauteng newspapers

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS
Goal
To promote and
communicate the
organisational
objectives,
achievements and
the brand to
external stakeholders

Performance indicator
Successful distribution
of Tourism Strategy
2008 – 2012

Target
Communication of the
Tourism Strategy 2008
– 2012 to
stakeholders

Performance results
The revised version of the Tourism Strategy
2008 – 2012 was reprinted and distributed to all
members of staff and stakeholders

The extent to which
external stakeholders
understand the TKZN
marketing plans for
the Zulu Kingdom

The compilation,
The annual report was completed and distributed
production and
to all stakeholders. It was well received by the
distribution of the
TKZN board and the provincial cabinet
2007/08 annual report

Level of success in
creating awareness of
TKZN’s achievements
and the performance
of KZN as a tourism
destination

Successful input to
and distribution of
news pages in the
bimonthly WWW
magazine

Six editions of WWW magazine were produced
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Marketing and Communications continued
TOURISM AWARENESS
Goal
To ensure that
communities
understand the
importance and the
benefits of tourism to
the province

Performance indicator
The number of
tourism awareness
programmes held
throughout the
province

Target
Hold tourism
awareness road shows
in the Zulu Kingdom’s
eight destinations

Implement joint
The level of success in tourism awareness
campaigns with key
implementing joint
campaigns that create stakeholders
tourism awareness
Lobby safety and
security authorities to
include tourism
awareness in their
media campaigns

Performance results
Continued to work closely with the Tourism
Development Department, partnering with
provincial departments and district municipalities
on tourism awareness projects, with workshops
conducted at district municipalities
TKZN also partnered with the Department of Arts,
Culture and Tourism, Department of Community
Safety and Liaison, district municipalities and the
South African Police Service
TKZN participated in the Provincial Priority
Committee as well as in cluster committees
Print campaigns in the form of newspaper
editorials were conducted pre-Indaba, highlighting
the importance of having tourists/delegates in KZN
Continued with the reproduction of the Safety Tip
Brochure in partnership with the Department of
Community Liaison, which was distributed through
tollgates during tollgate campaigns and also given
to tourists in accommodation establishments
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CUSTOMER CARE MANAGEMENT
Goal
To champion the
cause of service
excellence within the
tourism industry

Performance indicator
Increase in positive
feedback from the
Grading Council
feedback report, the
website and customer
care line

Target
Work with the
Grading Council of SA
to assess consumer
feedback and remedy
where necessary

Maintain the customer
database and
implement an
incentive programme
for customers with
No complaints about previous bad holiday
outstanding responses experiences in the
Zulu Kingdom
The successful
implementation of
Responding to
the Service Excellence complaints within
Award programme
24 hours
Repeat visitations to
the Zulu Kingdom by
people who were
victims of crime

Increase in the number
of Service Excellence
Awards entries

Performance results
Complaints pertaining to graded establishments
were forwarded to the grading council and
followed up

Tourists who were victims of unfortunate
experiences while in KwaZulu-Natal were assisted.
In certain instances those who lost passports were
assisted in obtaining new ones, through
coordinated interaction with police. Aftercare was
also provided
Complaints received were acknowledged and
responded to within 24 hours
The Service Excellence Awards campaign started in
November 2008, in the form of a poster calling for
nominees. There was an increase in the number of
entries. The initiative was supported by TGCSA,
SAACI, SATSA, FEDHASA and Chaîne des
Rôtisseurs. The campaign received positive media
coverage in both print and electronic media

Coordination of the
external incentive
awards programme
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Tourism Information Services
Objectives
•

To collect and interpret key information to guide and monitor TKZN’s strategies and programmes;

•

To measure the overall performance of KwaZulu-Natal’s tourism industry and specific TKZN activities;

•

To maintain an information knowledge management system and databases to support this; and

•

To provide tourists, information offices and the tourism trade with electronic marketing tools to edit the content of
print marketing tools, and to undertake brochure distribution.

Key performance areas
•

Information and knowledge management; and

•

Destination management benchmarking and quality assurance.

General manager’s overview
During the year under review, TKZN renewed its affiliate membership of United Nations World Tourism Organisation
(UNWTO) and actively participated in its destination council activities – a key target that was set for the period under
review. The following is a list of the core UNWTO activities that TKZN participated in:
•

The Tourism Statistics Capacity Building Programme for African Countries Conference, which was held in Pretoria in
June 2008. TKZN presented on its Research and Knowledge Management Programme as an example for other tourism
regions to emulate;

•

UNWTO Tourism E-Marketing Conference – Budapest, Hungary, June 2008;

•

Regional Satellite Account Conference – Malaga, November 2008; and

•

Contributed to the UNWTO research project on destination branding.

TKZN realises that the collation, analysis and dissemination of information is critical to an effective destination management
organisation, and that information is essential to formulating and monitoring key strategies and influencing decisions of
individual tour operators and tourists.
TKZN updated several reports on specific elements pertaining to its domestic and international segmentation and targeting.
An accurate register of tourism services and attractions in KwaZulu-Natal, including levels of accessibility and compliance
with relevant tourist registration legislation and regulations, was maintained.
TKZN continued to provide a professional tourism information service and maintained a series of key gateway and tourism
information offices, both regionally and nationally. Well-trained researchers and an interviewing team enabled TKZN to
conduct a range of impact assessments of major events such as the Comrades Marathon and Indaba 2008, using internal
resources which saved a great deal of money.
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TKZN was invited to present three papers on the work of

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

its knowledge management programme – the first to the

Research

international Travel and Tourism Research Association

•

and conferences;

(TTRA) on “Destination Brand Health Monitoring: A Key
Destination Competitiveness Tool” the second at the

•

•

of township tourism in KwaZulu-Natal, again using
internal resources. The useful statistics brochure for

Registration and database maintenance
•

A total of 1 265 guides were registered with TKZN;

•

A total of 921 other tourism service providers are fully
registered with TKZN; and

2008/9 was published as well as an updated catalogue of
all TKZN research reports. In addition, TKZN also

•

formulated a short and long-term strategy for the Cruise

Tourism information services
•

Western Cape and Mpumalanga;

research regarding Durban consumer and trade
•

•

relevant databases (such as the tourism asset database)

Achieved significant growth in telephone and fax
enquiries (4%), walk-ins (13%), emails (28%), and

During this period, 1 265 tour guides and 921 other
tourism service providers were registered. All of the

Implemented an international, national and local
tourism brochure distribution action plan; and

operations out of Durban’s new international airport
at La Mercy.

Maintained national and regional Tourist Junction
Information facilities in KwaZulu-Natal, Gauteng, the

Indian Ocean Association (CIOA) and mobilised qualitative

perceptions of proposed foreign scheduled airline

The tourism asset database was updated over the
2008/9 financial year.

completed a study to estimate the scale of KZN economic
and business class air ticket demand for foreign trips;

An updated catalogue of all TKZN’s research reports
was produced.

in Destination Management.”
In addition, TKZN finalised a study regarding the potential

A useful statistics brochure for 2007/8 was published;
and

UNWTO African Capacitation Workshop and the third to
the Mozambique Tourism Ministry on “The Latest Trends

Continued evaluation of KwaZulu-Natal’s major events

international brochure distribution (44%).
E-marketing
A brand new web portal was launched.

were updated.
Destination management, benchmarking and quality
The 2008/9 financial year also saw TKZN roll out a brand

assurance

new web portal. It also maintained a range of other

•

graded establishments in the 2008/9 financial year;

e-marketing tools such as its SMS and email-on-demand.
As part of the benchmarking and quality assurance

More than 27% increase in the level of KwaZulu-Natal

•

There is 77% level of awareness of the concept of

programme, TKZN increased the level of graded

accessibility amongst KwaZulu-Natal accommodation

establishments in KwaZulu-Natal by more than 169%

providers; and

since June 2006. It also secured the greatest number of
MATCH contract sign-ups of any province.

•

TKZN’s affiliate membership of the UNWTO and a
membership of its destination council was renewed.
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Tourism Information Services continued
RESEARCH, INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE, MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE
Goal
Performance indicator
To collate and monitor Reports and projects
the latest information completed
pertaining to tourism
marketing and
development in order
to develop effective
strategies to engage
the tourism market

Target
Trends reports/fliers,
Phase 2 of Convention
Research Programme,
Key Event Impact
Assessments
Segmentation Reports,
Image Survey,
Performance Monitor,
Visitor Book
programme, library
service, annual
Domestic Brand Health
monitor, Omnibus
Survey

Performance results
All projects earmarked in the 2008/2009 research
plan were mobilised or completed
They included impact assessments of:
• Splashy Fen
• Comrades Marathon
• Vodacom Durban July Horse Race
• Loerie Awards
• Sardine Festival
• Royal Reed Dance
• MTN Jazz Festival
• Amashova Cycle Race
• Dusi Canoe Marathon
• Midmar Mile
Tourism impact assessments of conventions or
exhibitions:
• Indaba 2008
• International Congress of Entomology
• International Society of Paediatric and
Adolescent Diabetes Conference
• South Africa TB Conference
• Ophthalmic Surgeons South Africa Conference
• National Treasury Conference
• International Conference of Radiographers
• International Pig Vets Conference
• Wastecon Conference
• Fourth SA AIDS Conference
Brand Health Monitor
Monthly panel surveys of leading tourism
stakeholders.
Visitor Book project
Latest editions of TKZN’s domestic and
international segmentation and targeting approach
reports
TKZN Image Survey
KZN Tourism Stakeholder
Perceptions of THETA
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RESEARCH, INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE, MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE continued
Goal

Performance indicator Target

Performance results
Estimates of KZN economic and business class air
ticket demand for foreign trips
A short and long-term strategy for the Cruise
Indian Ocean Association
Qualitative research regarding Durban
Consumer and trade perceptions of proposed
foreign scheduled airline operations out of new
King Shaka International Airport
The following were published for mass
distribution:
Two editions of the Useful Statistics Brochure for
2008/2009
An updated catalogue of all TKZN research reports

To monitor TKZN’s
marketing
performance

Performance monitor
reports

Performance monitor
reports

Quarterly reports were formulated

To maintain an
accurate register of
tourism services and
attractions in KZN,
including levels of
accessibility

Maintenance of
registration/
information databases
and related email
forums

Level of registration,
number of database
records updated or
created

Some 1 265 tourist guides are registered with
TKZN
Some 142 new guides were registered since March
2008 of whom 103 are HDIs
A total of 921 other tourism service providers are
fully registered with TKZN
Some 1 000 are in the process of registering with
TKZN
Various TKZN information related data sets were
updated

To ensure compliance
with relevant tourist
registration legislation
and regulations

Level of compliance
with relevant
legislation/regulations

Random site visits were undertaken to check on
tourism establishments and tourist guides
operating illegally
The development of new registration system was
mobilised
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Tourism Information Services continued
RESEARCH, INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE, MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE continued
Goal
To maintain TKZN’s
mass email forums

Performance indicator Target

To provide professional Utilisation of service –
tourism information
walk-ins to offices,
service
telephone, email and
fax enquiries

Utilisation of service –
walk-ins to offices,
telephone, email and
fax enquiries

Performance results
TKZN’s email forums were updated

Telephone and Fax enquiries: 58 733 (+4%)
Walk-ins: 232 463 (+13%)
Emails: 6 788 (+28%)

Comparative analysis
of service with other
provincial information
offices to enhance
current service
To maintain a series of
key gateway market
offices

Maintenance of
existing gateway and
key market offices.
Establishment of a Piet
Retief gateway office.
Educational/training
programme for
information officers

Agreements to ensure the continued existence of
TKZN’s Montrose, Kokstad, Golela, DIA, V&A,
uShaka, Sandton, Piet Retief and Tourist Junction
information facilities were concluded
An educational and training programme for
information officers was formulated and mobilised
The following educationals were organised for
TKZN information staff:
• Elephant Coast
• Royal Hotel
• Durban and surrounds
As in previous years a special Easter information
provision campaign was mobilised at TKZN’s key
Gateway Information Offices
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RESEARCH, INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE, MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE continued
Goal
Performance indicator Target
To provide information
support at key trade
and consumer shows,
for arrivals of cruise
liners and key events

To distribute
marketing material

Level and nature of
distribution of
marketing material

Distribution in line
with annual
distribution plan

Performance results
Support was provided at the following events:
• Indaba 2008
• Gauteng Outdoor Adventure Show
• International Youth Crime Prevention and
Cities Summit 2008
• SMME’s exhibition in Inanda
• eThekwini Disability Exhibition
• Microsoft Tech Ed Exhibition
• DStv Getaway Show
• Zululand Expo
• HICA Conference
• Topresca
• Soweto Show
• Dusi Canoe Marathon
• Cape Argus Lifecycle Expo
• Cruise Liners – Melody, Rhapsody, Deutschland,
Hebridean Spirit, Astor, Aurora, Albatross,
Vistamor
A distribution action plan for 2008/2009 was
formulated and TKZN’s marketing collateral was
distributed in accordance with this plan
National brochure distribution: 651 854 (-2%)
International brochure distribution: 87 132 (+44%)
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Tourism Information Services continued
RESEARCH, INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE, MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE continued
Goal
To maintain and
further develop TKZN’s
network of websites
and other e-marketing
tools

Monitor KZN tourism
service standards
through qualified
registration and
grading of service
providers

Performance indicator Target
Needs analysis reports Revised web strategy
and steps towards
establishment of a
Level of updates of
Destination
these systems
Management System
(DMS)
User rates of these
systems
Maintenance and
further development
of TKZN’s network of
websites, intranet,
fax-on-demand and
teli-tourist services

Performance results
TKZN maintained a new Destination Management
System in collaboration with the Gauteng Tourism
Authority, Cape Town Routes Unlimited and
Thompsons.

Tracking survey to
determine increases in
levels of awareness of
Level of awareness of the TGCSA grading
the National Grading scheme and reasons
for not joining this
Scheme and the
concept of accessibility scheme

The level of grading increased by 169% (407)
since June 2006, the date of the launch of TKZN’s
grading promotion action plan, or from 862 at
beginning of April 2008 to 1 096 at the end of
March 2009

Level of grading in
KZN

The establishment of an archive for past marketing
collateral is part of the DMS rollout
TKZN’s existing network of websites,
fax-on-demand and teli-tourist services were
updated and maintained

The tracking survey was conducted. The core
reasons for not grading have been determined.
Some 77% of all accommodation establishments
are aware of the concept of accessibility and the
TGCSA Accessibility scheme

More than six workshops were conducted
Service ratings derived Continuation of
from national tourism grading awareness,
accessibility and service
surveys
excellence workshops
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RESEARCH, INFORMATION, KNOWLEDGE, MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY ASSURANCE continued
Goal
Benchmarking TKZN in
terms of Destination
Management Best
Practice

Performance indicator Target
Participation in
UNWTO Destination
Management Centre UNWTO activities
of Excellence
programme and its
Destination Council
activities

Affiliate membership
of UNWTO

Performance results
Presentation at TTRA Europe 2008 regarding
Destination Brand Health Monitoring: A Key
Destination Competitiveness Tool, Helsinki, Finland
Presentation on TKZN’s Destination Knowledge
Management Programme at UNWTO Capacity
Building Programme for African Countries,
Pretoria, June 2008
Presentation to the Mozambique Ministry on the
latest trends in destination management, May
2008
Participated in UNWTO Tourism E-Marketing
Conference, Budapest, Hungary, June 2008 and
Regional Satellite Account Conference, Malaga.
Contributed to the UNWTO research project on
destination branding
TKZN renewed its affiliate membership of the
UNWTO and is an active member of its destination
council
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Tourism Development
Objectives
• To develop and facilitate demand-driven tourism infrastructure;
• To fast-track tourism growth in the province by facilitating tourism investment in conjunction with Trade and
Investment KwaZulu-Natal; and
• To provide strategic business advice and support for the development of tourism BEE within the province.
Key performance areas
• Safety and awareness;
• Tourism infrastructure;
• BEE and SMME advisory services;
• Tourism BEE and SMME skills development; and
• Destination development.
General manager’s overview
Tourism KZN is committed to the transformation of tourism in the province. The Tourism Development division has
programmes that drive empowerment and integration of historically disadvantaged individuals and entities into the
mainstream tourism economy. As such, the division is geared to champion initiatives that drive the transformation agenda,
including promoting compliance with the now gazetted Tourism BEE Charter and scorecard.
During the quarter under review, a draft provincial Transformation Plan was developed by the Department of Arts, Culture
and Tourism, with input from the Tourism Development division. Consultative workshops on the Transformation Plan took
place, with intention to have the plan finalised and implemented in the next financial year.
One of the key elements of transformation is access: access to information and access to markets. Tourism Development
provides information and advisory support to HDI SMMEs. Over the period under review, the division intensified its efforts in
this regard, resulting in 680 small businesses assisted, compared to 455 assisted during the previous financial year.
SMMEs were taken through various business-promotion and training stages for Indaba, which forms part of TKZN’s SMME
incubation programme. During the period under review, 35 SMME’s were involved. This spanned from small-business
initiates who were more “roving” to familiarise themselves with Indaba in the first year, progressing to advanced businesses
who participated in business-promotion under the TKZN exhibition umbrella in their second year, and finally, the
independent exhibitors, who promoted their businesses in “their own” stands. TKZN assisted the latter by subsidising
25 percent of their exhibition fees.
Working with TIKZN, the division continued to pursue a balanced tourism development approach by courting prospective
tourism investors who own internationally-acclaimed brands, while at the same time the division pursued the development
of indigenous tourism products that provide a local, authentic twist to the tourism mix. The latter also serves to fulfil
provincial and national poverty-alleviation objectives through labour-intensive construction projects.
One such project, the Ngome Game Reserve, was completed and handed over to the Ngome Trust by the MEC for
Economic Development and Tourism (DEDT), MEC M Mabuyakhulu. Five SMME companies from the Greytown area were
contracted to undertake the rehabilitation of road, land, the completion of the lodge, the construction of game fencing and
two causeways. In total, 103 local people were employed in the project, of which 44 were women and 59 youth.
TKZN worked very closely with TIKZN and other relevant stakeholders in trying to develop sustainable, accessible tourism
products. The projects that have been identified in this regard include development around the Inanda and Hazelmere
Dams, and a beach resort to the south of uThukela River.
Some of the most crucial developments during the year under review were the revival of key tourism routes and their forums
who will be the drivers of such routes. These forums – which include the Freedom Route, and the King Shaka Heritage Route
– were revived in conjunction with the relevant local municipalities and also with assistance from the provincial corridor fund,
which is administered by the Department of Local Government and Traditional Affairs.
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Regarding tourism Safety and Awareness, TKZN continued
to conduct stakeholder workshops in conjunction with
local and district municipalities as well as to roll out the
distribution of Safety Tips at strategic tourism points and
gateways. The division also participated in a session
hosted by the Department of Community Safety and
Liaison, to discuss the state of readiness of the city and
the province to host the 2010 Soccer World Cup.
Disaster management formed a critical part of the Safety
and Awareness initiatives that were rolled out to the
municipalities, including a Disaster Management Workshop
which was hosted by the Department of Local Government
and Housing focusing discussions on the state of readiness
of the district municipalities for major disasters.
Progress during the 2008/9 financial year included
awareness workshops hosted with the Amajuba,
uThukela and iLembe District Municipalities.
Performance highlights
Tourism BEE and SMME advisory services
• 680 aspiring SMMEs received information and
advisory support via workshops and one-on-one
engagements;
•

•

35 SMMEs were identified to be part of the TKZN
Indaba exhibition stand – to give the SMMEs exposure
and access to national, continental and international
buyers or prospective partners;
City of Choice, an HDI-owned Tour Operating small
business, was chosen as the provincial winner in the
Emerging Tourism Entrepreneur of the Year Award
competition and was invited to participate at the
World Travel Market in London and ITB in Berlin. City
of Choice was subsequently pronounced National
ETEYA winner during Indaba 2009;

•

Tourism Sector Codes have been promulgated; and

•

Presentation on advisory services during the INK
(Inanda, Ntuzuma, KwaMashu) workshop.

•

Two SMMEs attended AFRICANDO exchange
programme in partnership with DEAT and The
Foundation for Democracy in Africa in Miami;

•

240 tourism SMMEs and aspiring tourism product
owners attended the TEP/TKZN tourism toolkit
sessions in three district municipalities;

•

Tourism small business development workshops were
conducted in Amajuba, uThukela and iLembe District
Municipalities;

•

12 SMMEs in travel business were trained in Galileo
Reservation Services programmes; and

•

141 HDI hotel staff was trained in hospitality and
business management.

Destination development
• The freedom route was launched in September by the
then MEC for Arts, Culture and Tourism, Mrs Weziwe
Thusi;
•

A study looking at a possible model that could be
utilised to make sure that community based tourism
projects are sustainable was developed;

•

A township tourism study was completed and a link
established with 11 townships around Durban;

•

The Isibhubhu and Mnweni cable car projects were
packaged for investment;

•

Four sites for Durban hotel development were
identified for investment promotion; and

•

Three feasibility studies for Hazelmere Dam, Inanda
Dam and Boarder Cave were developed.

Safety and awareness
• Three safety and awareness workshops were
undertaken with Amajuba, uThukela and iLembe
District Municipalities;
•

As a member of the National Safety and Awareness
Task Team, TKZN assisted the Gauteng and the
Eastern Cape Tourism Authorities to develop their
safety and awareness strategies; and

•

TKZN worked very closely with the SAPS in the
promotion of a safe environment for tourists and
participated at the Provincial Priority Committee on
tourism and rural safety.

Tourism BEE skills development
• 35 SMMEs were trained in preparation for
participation at Tourism Indaba 2009;
•

Two SMMEs – City of Choice and Meluleki Tours –
participated at the American Society of Travel Agents
Expo to form business linkages that further build
KZN’s tour operator capacity;
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Tourism Development continued
TOURISM BEE AND SMME ADVISORY SERVCIES
Goal
To provide business
advisory services to
aspiring tourism
entrepreneurs

Performance indicator
Number of tourism
BEE and SMMEs
provided with
advisory services

Target
Ongoing provision of
tourism business
advisory services to
BEE and SMMEs

Performance results
Information dissemination and advisory support
provided to 680 aspiring SMMEs through weekly
workshops and one-on-ones
As part of information dissemination programme
the following initiatives were done:
• Amajuba Tourism Awareness and Business
Development workshops were held in
Newcastle on 30 October 2008
• uThukela Tourism Awareness and Business
Development workshop was held in Estcourt
on 26 February 2009
• iLembe Tourism Awareness and Business
Development workshop was held in Ballito on
26 March 2009
TD presented at the INK SMME Fair in partnership
with eThekwini Municipality in Inanda
TD facilitated an information dissemination
workshop in partnership with Ugu Chamber of
Business and SEDA
TD participated at the SEDA Entrepreneur Day
where tourism business startup information was
disseminated
ETEYA 2008/9
A total of 12 SMMEs entered for the Entrepreneur
of The Year Award competition in KwaZulu-Natal,
of which five were short-listed
The five short-listed candidates were trained on
presentation skills before being judged by the
adjudication panel
Three SMMEs advanced to the semi-finals and they
were:
• City of Choice Travel and Tours
• Swazi B&B
• Izinga Guest House
The City of Choice was selected as KZN’s finalist at
an event in Johannesburg
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TOURISM BEE AND SMME ADVISORY SERVCIES continued
Goal

Performance indicator Target

Performance results
The finalist participated at ITB in Berlin where a
national winner was selected
The overall national winner for ETEYA 2008/9 was
City of Choice, our provincial finalist.

Number of incubator
and mentorship
programmes
successfully facilitated

Facilitate incubator
and mentorship
programmes

DACT, TKZN, DTI, SEDA, FEDHASA and TEP
initiated a mentorship programme to assist and
support tourism businesses in contributing and
benefiting meaningfully from leading
organisations within the tourism industry
15 partnerships were successful in 2008/9

Number of business
linkages successfully
facilitated

Facilitate business
linkages for BEE and
SMMEs with
established tourism
entities

Two SMMEs participated at the (ASTA) American
Society of Travel Agents Expo held from
8 – 11 March 2009 in Sun City
Two SMMEs attended the AFRICANDO exchange
programme in partnership with DEAT and The
Foundation for Democracy in Africa in Miami
where linkages were created
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Tourism Development continued
TOURISM BEE SKILLS DEVELOPMENT
Goal
To facilitate the skills
development for
tourism BEE and
SMME entrepreneurs

Performance indicator
The extent of the
successful
identification of
training interventions
required

Target
Facilitate the
identification of
training interventions
required to address
skills gaps within the
tourism BEE and
SMMEs

Performance results
240 tourism SMMEs and aspiring tourism product
owners attended the TEP/TKZN Tourism Toolkit in
three district municipalities
TKZN in partnership with FEDHASA trained
141 HDI hotel staff members on the following:
• Hospitality management
• Customer care
• Marketing
• Finance
• Human resources
• Business management
The following HDI Hotels benefited from the
programme:
• Olwandle Suite hotel
• City Royal Hotel
• Babanango Hotel
• Mbazwana Inn
• Nongoma Inn
• Nongoma Lodge
12 SMMEs in travel business had their staff trained
in Galileo, a reservation and itinerary management
system
25 SMMEs were trained in exhibition management
in preparation for Indaba 2009
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TOURISM BEE SCORECARD COMPLIANCE
Goal
To monitor and
facilitate BEE scorecard
implementation and
compliance

Performance indicator
Number of workshops
held to promote
Tourism BEE Scorecard
and Compliance

Target
Promote business
benefits of the
Tourism BEE scorecard

Performance results
The following initiatives were part of the
information dissemination programme:
• Amajuba tourism awareness and business
development workshop was held in Newcastle
• uThukela tourism awareness and business
development workshop was held in Estcourt
• iLembe tourism awareness and business
development workshop was held in Ballito

Level of success in
developing the
Tourism BEE database
and utilisation thereof

Develop accredited
Tourism BEE database
to facilitate business
linkages as part
of the scorecard
implementation

A national database of BEE-accredited tourism
businesses was developed
TKZN and DACT continued participating in the
provincial and metro focal points quarterly
meetings
The Tourism Sector Code was promulgated
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Tourism Development continued
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT
Goal
To fast track tourism
growth in the province
by facilitating tourism
investments

Performance indicator
Facilitate the
investments and
developments of
diversified tourism
products as per the
National Tourism
Development Study
from DEAT

Target
Level of success in
securing investment
and development as
recommended in the
National Product
Development Study

Performance results
TKZN in partnership with Trade and Investment
KwaZulu-Natal (TIKZN) and the Industrial
Development Corporation (IDC) developed a
concept for a high impact beach resort. The site
was identified in Nonoti; a marketability study was
conducted, in a process of developing a prefeasibility study
TKZN in partnership with TIKZN and eThekwini
municipality developed a feasibility study for
Inanda Dam and Hazelmere Dam
Isibhubhu and the cable car were packaged for
investment
TKZN, DACT, TIKZN, KZN Wildlife, DED and Ithala
partnered and developed a report on community
based tourism projects looking at the possible
models that could be used to make sure that our
community projects are self-sustainable
Six packaged investment projects were marketed
at Hospitality Investment Conference (HICA) held
in Gauteng
Four Durban hotel sites were identified to be
packaged for investment
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DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT continued
Goal
Performance indicator
To develop new routes Facilitate the
and experiences
prioritisation and
implementation of at
least two tourism
routes

Target
The level of success in
implementation of the
tourism route

Performance results
The Freedom Route was established and new
experiences around the freedom struggle were
developed in conjunction with various tourism
stakeholders around Durban and Pietermaritzburg
The Zulu Heritage Route forum was revived and
the route along the R66 was established and a
forum was formed to promote this route. Signage
was also erected for this route
The King Shaka Heritage Route was revived and
the development of this route was done in
conjunction with the KwaDukuza and iLembe
Municipalities with various infrastructure
components such as parking, ablutions, tourist
facilities, etc, being developed. Signage was also
erected for this route
The Railway Tourism Route between
Pietermaritzburg, Creighton and Underberg was
implemented through the funding from KZN
Gijima with the upgrading of rolling stock, related
infrastructure and off-train tourist experiences and
facilities were developed
The Township Tourism study was completed and
three routes were established to link the eleven
townships around Durban
The N3 Tourism Route forum was established to
facilitate the development of a tourism route from
Gauteng to KwaZulu-Natal
A Coastal Route between the Western Cape via
the Eastern Cape to KwaZulu-Natal was
investigated and liaison between the tourism
authorities of these provinces is ongoing
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Tourism Development continued
DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT continued
Goal

Performance indicator
Facilitate the
implementation,
completion and
handover of Tourism
Development projects
where TKZN is the
implementing agent

Target
Level of success in
implementation,
completion and
handover of tourism
development projects

Performance results
An amount of R7,6 million was received from the
provincial departments to complete the Ngome
Game Reserve project
The project completed was the rehabilitation of a
3 km of road and 400 hectares of land, the
construction of two low level causeways and the
completion of eleven chalets and a central facility
which comprises of a conference centre, arts and
crafts centre, a restaurant, dining room, laundry
facility and staff quarters
Regarding Lilani Hotsprings, a decision was made
that the project be reconceptualised so that it
could be turned around and operate to its full
potential
A reconceptualisation concept document was
completed by the Tourism Development team
DEAT approved the funding of the Isibhubhu
project and the agreement between DEAT and
TKZN, as implementing agents, was signed and
the implementation of the project is due to
commence in the new financial year
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DESTINATION DEVELOPMENT continued
Goal
To help assure the
health and security
of tourists

Performance indicator
Facilitate tourism
awareness campaigns
dealing with health
and safety as well as
economic benefits in
conjunction with
public relations and
communications

Target
The number of
tourism awareness
campaigns undertaken

Performance results
Three tourism awareness workshops aimed at
stakeholders who were in the industry were also
undertaken this financial year. The first was held
at the Canon Lodge in Amajuba District
Municipality on 30 October 2008; the second was
held on 26 February 2009 at the Blue Haze
Country Lodge within the uThukela DM; and the
third one was held on 26 March 2009 at the
Boathouse within iLembe DM
During the workshop, issues of disaster
management were discussed in order to ascertain
the DM’s readiness for major disasters affecting
tourists
TKZN was also one of the three provincial tourism
authorities that were appointed by DEAT as
members of the national tourism task team whose
aim was to develop a tourists Safety and
Awareness framework and assist other provinces
to develop their frameworks. In November 2008,
the task team had a two day session with the
Eastern Cape Tourism Department to assist them in
developing their Safety and Awareness strategy
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Corporate Services
Objectives
• To provide an enabling environment to ensure that employees’ skills, knowledge and attributes are applied to ensure
maximum benefit;
•

To provide a reliable support service to assist the business units in carrying out their strategic objectives in line with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements; and

•

To ensure that the organisation’s activities are aligned with its strategy.

Performance measures
• Maintaining programmes aimed at improving employee wellness;
• The success in facilitating training in response to skills gaps identified during the skills assessment exercise as well as
the performance review process;
• Review and revise human resources-related policies;
• Proper planning and recruitment to fill outstanding vacancies;
• Minimising the incidents of labour relation disputes and promoting fair labour practices; and
• Ensuring compliance with organisational policies.
General manager’s overview
TKZN recognises that the success of its strategy hinges on the ability of the organisation to prioritise the employment of
people who will add value to the core competencies and responsibilities of the organisation. It also realises that, in order to
optimise their performance, measures to improve employee wellbeing are important, as is the provision of training and
facilitation of skills development in order to further improve TKZN’s ability to provide an effective service to the province, the
tourism industry and the public.
One of the key highlights was the approval of the revised performance management system by the board in December
2008. This formed part of the rollout/implementation of the human resources strategy, which was approved by the board in
March 2008.
TKZN embarked on the implementation of the internship programme and the first batch of interns commenced duties in
July 2008. Currently, there is an intake of eight interns; two in Corporate Services, three in Marketing and Communications
and three in Tourism Development. The positive impact of the programme is evidenced by the fact that two of our interns
have already secured permanent employment.
One of the seven strategic thrusts of TKZN is the maintenance of an enabling environment to ensure optimal execution of
the TKZN Strategy 2008 – 2012. With this in mind, an Executive Leadership Programme for the executive team to enhance
organisational performance was sourced. Leadership workshops were held and the programme is expected to be completed
by the end of December 2009.
On the information technology side, achievements during the period under review include the completion of the migration
process between the old and new servers. Furthermore, a new telephone system is being installed to meet the business
requirements of the organisation.
The Finance division was instrumental in ensuring implementation of financial policies and procedures to ensure compliance
with all applicable statutory and/or regulatory requirements. All matters raised by the audit teams were addressed.
On the procurement side, a new panel of attorneys was appointed after the expiry of the mandate of the former legal
service provider. The lease on the existing premises was extended for a further period of three years, including the
acquisition of additional floor space to meet increased requirements.
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INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY
Goal
The acquiring of the
latest and relevant
technology tools that
are aligned to the
broader business of
TKZN

Performance
Improvement and
reward policy and
system

Target
Configuration of the
new servers

Performance indicator
Upgraded server
equipment to the
required standard in
the IT business

Performance results
Migration between old and new servers was
completed

Implementation of
group policies for
different departments

Increased levels of
security on the servers
and on users’
computers

Done

Review and source
new internal and
external
telecommunication
system

New system installed

A new telephone system installed

Comprehensive
performance
management system

Implementation of the
revised performance
management system
and policy for Grade 3
to Grade 9

A revised performance management system policy
was approved by the Corporate Services
Committee of the board in October 2008 for
implementation in April 2009

Performance
agreements for each
employee

The establishment of
a centralised cost
effective, transparent
and efficient
procurement of
goods and services

Performance agreements were signed by all staff
Signing of
performance contract
aligned to strategy,
annual business plan
and action plan

Monthly report
Increase percentage
spend on BEE supplies on BEE spend

The establishment of a centralised, transparent
and efficient procurement of goods and services
was finalised
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Corporate Services continued
INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY continued
Goal
Training and
development

Target
Leadership
programme

Performance indicator
Update work skills
plan (WSP) for the
organisation and
implementation plan

Performance results
Two workshops were held and more are still to
follow

Coaching and
mentoring

Developing leadership The first training session was held in December
competencies resource 2008 and the process is ongoing
guide
Conduct coaching and
mentoring training to
management of TKZN

Intake of at least five
Implementation of
internship programme internship students
in partnership with
Tourism, Hospitality
and Sport Education
and Training Authority
(THETA)

TKZN currently has an intake of eight internship
students: two in Corporate Services; three in
Marketing; and three in Tourism Development

Employee relations

Maintenance of
working relationship
between TKZN and
NEHAWU

Develop and
implement employee
relations strategy
(how do we deal with
union interest group
on issues of
representation;
communication etc.)

Implementation of
sound financial
policies and
procedures that ensure
compliance with all
applicable statutory
and/or regulatory
requirements

Review of financial
policies, where
appropriate

A clear and common
Ongoing
understanding of
policies and
procedures at all times

Implementation of
e-banking

An effective, paperless Pilot project to be implemented in 2009/10
financial year
banking system

The employee relationship strategy is contained in
the recognition agreement between NEHAWU
and TKZN

Ongoing
Adherence to budget An unqualified audit
and expenditure cycles report on the
management of assets
Timeous submission of All quarterly reports were submitted
Adherence to
deliverables as per the financial reports as per
the MOU with DACT
MOU with DACT
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INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATIONS TECHNOLOGY continued
Goal

The establishment
of a risk matrix
for TKZN

Target
Adherence to
statutory obligations
as per the PFMA

Performance indicator Performance results
Timeous submission of Ongoing
financial reports as per
the PFMA

Verification of assets
twice per annum;
ongoing fixed asset
register (FAR)
maintenance;
conducting
workshop(s) on
management of
assets; and monthly
updating of the FAR
to reflect correct
status at all times

A clear audit report on The assets were verified at least twice per annum
management of assets
The fixed asset register (FAR) was updated on a
monthly basis to achieve a clean audit

All risk areas raised in
risk management
report addressed

Achievement of an
unqualified audit
report on the
management of risk

Development of a
materiality and
significance
framework as well as
a fraud and
prevention plan

Successful
Done
implementation of a
fraud and prevention
plan as well as a
materiality and
significance framework

Some of the internal audit recommendations
were implemented as agreed upon on
presentation of the report
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Corporate Services continued
LIST FOR NEW RECRUITS, TERMINATIONS AND NEWLY CREATED POSITIONS

Position

Advertised

Department

Date vacated

Date filled

Chief operating officer

November 2007

CEO

May 2007

August 2008

Executive assistant to COO

June 2008

CEO

July 2007

September 2008

Administrative assistant

January 2009

CEO

September 2008

May 2009

Information officer

Internal

Tourism

appointment

Information Services

September 2008

November 2008

General manager

February 2008

Marketing

August 2007

June 2008

Public relations coordinator

January 2008

Marketing

New position

June 2008

Manager: Business Tourism

October 2008

Marketing

November 2008

Vacant

Marketing

September 2008

September 2008

May 2009
Manager: PR and Communications

February 2008

Procurement officer

January 2008

Corporate Services

February 2008

April 2008

Receptionist

August 2008

Corporate Services

November 2008

April 2009

Accounts administrator creditors

August 2008

Corporate Services

August 2008

April 2009

Administrative assistant

January 2009

Corporate Services

January 2009

June 2009

Procurement assistant

January 2009

Corporate Services

New position

May 2009

General manager

April 2009

Tourism Development

February 2009

Vacant

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES

Department
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Vacancies

Employment

CEO’s office

3

3

Corporate Services

5

1

Marketing

4

3

Tourism Development

1

0

Tourism Information Services

1

1
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LABOUR RELATIONS, TERMINATIONS AND APPOINTMENTS

Nature of disciplinary action

Number

Verbal warning

0

Written warning

0

Final written warning

0

Dismissal

0

Type of misconduct

Number

Failure to carry out lawful instructions

0

Gross dishonesty

0

Gross insubordination

0

Absenteeism

0

There were no grievances lodged for the period 1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009
Terminations
African males
Senior management

1

Skilled technical and academically qualified

2
3

African females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist mid-management

1

Skilled technical and academically qualified

1
2

Appointments
African females
Senior management

3

Professionally qualified and experience specialist mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified

2
6

African males
Skilled technical and academically qualified

1
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Corporate Services continued
STAFF COMPLEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2009

African females
Top management

1

Senior management

2

Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management

4

Skilled technical and academically qualified

15

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

2

Unskilled and defined decision making

1
25

African males
Top management

1

Senior management

1

Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management

3

Skilled technical and academically qualified
Unskilled and defined decision making

15
1
21

White females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management

1
1

White males
Senior management

1

Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management

1
2

Indian females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management

1

Skilled technical and academically qualified

2
3

Coloured females
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management

1

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

1
2

Coloured males
Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid-management
Total number of staff
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EQUITY TARGETS AND EMPLOYMENT EQUITY STATUS AS AT 31 MARCH 2009

Male occupational levels

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior management

1

1

0

0

0

1

1

0

Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management

3

3

1

1

0

0

1

1

15

13

0

0

0

1

0

0

0

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making
Unskilled and defined decision making

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Total permanent

21

21

1

1

0

2

2

1

Total

21

21

1

1

0

2

2

1

Female occupational levels

African

Coloured

Indian

White

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Senior management

2

2

0

0

0

0

0

0

Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management

4

6

1

0

1

0

1

2

15

16

0

0

2

2

0

2

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

2

2

1

0

0

0

0

0

Unskilled and defined decision making

1

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen and superintendents

Total permanent

25

28

2

0

3

2

1

4

Total

25

28

2

0

3

2

1

4

Occupational levels

Total Total
current target

Grades

Top management

2

2

2–4

Senior management

4

5

5–6

12

12

7–8

32

35

9 – 12

Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management,
supervisors, foremen and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making

3

4

13 – 14

Unskilled and defined decision making

2

2

15 – 16

Total permanent

55

61

Total

55

62

0

1

People with disability
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Statement of responsibility for the year ended 31 March 2009
The Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999), as amended, requires the Accounting Authority to
ensure that the public entity keeps full and proper records of the financial affairs of the public entity. It also requires
that the Annual Financial Statements fairly present the state of affairs of the public entity, its business, its financial
results, its performance against predetermined objectives and its financial position as at the end of each financial
year in terms of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (GAAP) and Generally Recognised Accounting Practices
(GRAP).
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (the Authority) acknowledges that the annual financial statements are the
responsibility of the members of the Authority. The Auditor-General is responsible for independently auditing and
reporting on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with statements of GAAP and GRAP. These
annual financial statements are based on appropriate accounting policies, supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates.
The members have reviewed the public entity’s budgets and cash flow forecasts for the year ended 31 March 2008.
On the basis of this review, and in view of the current financial position as well as the existing borrowing facilities,
the members have every reason to believe, and the auditors concur, that the public entity will be a going concern in
the year ahead and have continued to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements.
To enable the members to meet the above responsibilities, the board of the members sets standards and
implements systems of internal controls and risk management that are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance against material misstatements and losses. The public entity maintains internal financial controls
to provide assurance regarding:
•

The safeguarding of assets against unauthorised use or disposition; and

•

The maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of financial information used within the
business or for publication.

In the opinion of members, based on information available to date, the annual financial statements fairly present
the financial position of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority at 31 March 2008 and the results of its operations
and cash flow information for the year and that the Code of Corporate Governance has been adhered to.
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009, set out on pages 72 to 78, were approved by
the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1) (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999), as amended and are signed on its behalf by:

N Khoza
Chief Executive Officer

T Dlamini
Chairperson

31 July 2009
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Corporate governance report for the year ended 31 March 2009
The board of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (Authority) is responsible for the establishment of a risk
management approach, development of fraud prevention policies, effectiveness of internal audit and audit
committee as well as other governance structures. These include management processes to minimise conflict of
interest, implementation of code of conduct as well as safety, health and environmental issues facing the Authority.
On the other hand, management is responsible and accountable to the board for designing, implementing and
monitoring the processes outlined above and integrating them into the day-to-day activities of the Authority.
To this end, appropriate governance structures were set up to deal with these issues as set out in detail below.
Human Resources and Compensation Committee
This committee comprises of a minimum of three members including the Chairperson nominated from the members
of the board.
The Human Resources and Compensation Committee’s primary functions will include reviewing and recommending
to the board the following:
•

Issues relating to human resources management and planning including recruitment and selection; training;
performance management; succession planning and to report to the board on the implementation of these
strategies;

•

Review and approve proposals for the general adjustment of standard conditions of service including matters
relating to leave; housing; motor vehicles; bonuses; incentives; pension fund; provident fund; medical aid and
other conditions of service applicable to the organisation;

•

Review salary scales and determine overall compensation including annual increment and bonuses taking into
account applicable performance targets;

•

Review and approve changes in the organisational structure;

•

Ensure that the organisation has in place programmes and policies to attract and retain executives of high
calibre to successfully lead the organisation in their respective areas of responsibility;

•

Performance management of the Human Resources and Compensation Committee;

•

Annual action plan activities within the scope of the committee; and

•

Review and evaluate adequacy of these terms of reference at least on an annual basis.

Audit and Risk Committee
This committee comprises of a minimum of three members including the Chairperson nominated from the members
of the board.
The primary functions of this committee include reviewing and recommending to the board the following:
Financial statements
The Audit and Risk Committee shall:
•

Examine and review the annual financial statements and the interim financial reports with management and the
external auditors before filing with regulators, and consider whether they are complete and consistent with the
information known to committee members;

•

Review with management and external auditors the results of the audit, including any difficulties encountered;

•

Review the annual financial statements, and consider whether they are complete, consistent with information
known to committee members, and reflect appropriate accounting principles; and

•

Review with management and the external auditors all matters required to be communicated to stakeholders
under generally accepted auditing standards.
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Internal control
•

The Audit and Risk Committee shall consider the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control system,
including information technology security and control;

•

Understanding the scope of internal and external auditor’s review of internal control over financial reporting,
and obtain reports on significant findings and recommendations, together with management’s responses;

•

Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control systems;

•

Reviewing the control procedures followed by management;

•

Reviewing the controls designed to ensure that assets are safeguarded;

•

Reviewing the Fraud Prevention plan implemented to prevent and detect fraud;

•

Reviewing risk management and related policies; and

•

Reviewing compliance with prescribed accounting framework.

Internal audit
An important role of the Audit and Risk Committee will be to monitor, guide and supervise the functioning of the
internal audit, ensuring that the roles and functions of the external audit and internal audit are sufficiently clarified
and coordinated to provide an objective overview of the operational effectiveness of the organisation’s systems of
internal control and reporting. This will include:
•

Annually reviewing and approving the Internal Audit Charter to ensure adherence to best practices;

•

Approving the three-year Internal Audit Strategic and Annual Operational plans and review performance against
the plan;

•

Reviewing the adequacy of corrective action taken in response to significant internal audit findings;

•

Reviewing internal audit plans to ensure that high risk areas are identified and mitigation strategies developed;

•

Meeting separately with the Chief Audit Executive to discuss matters that the committee believes should be
discussed privately;

•

Reviewing significant matters reported by the internal audit function;

•

Reviewing the objectives and operations of the internal audit function;

•

Assessing adequacy of performance of the internal audit function;

•

Reviewing the cooperation and coordination between the internal and external audit functions;

•

Reviewing any significant disagreements or differences of opinion between management and the internal audit
function;

•

Evaluating the independence and effectiveness of the internal auditors; and

•

Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal audit function, including compliance with the Institute of Internal
Auditors’ International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing.

External audit
•

Reviewing the external auditors’ proposed audit scope, approach, including coordination of audit effort with
internal audit;

•

Reviewing and confirming the independence of the external auditors by obtaining statements from the auditors
on relationships between the auditors and the organisation, including non-audit services, and discussing the
relationships with the auditors;

•

Reviewing the external auditors’ observations as presented in the management reports and the adequacy of
management response; and

•

On a regular basis, meet separately with the external auditors to discuss any matters that the committee or
auditors believe should be discussed privately.
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Corporate governance report for the year ended 31 March 2009 continued
Compliance
• Reviewing the effectiveness of systems for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and the results of
management’s investigation and follow-up of any instances of non-compliance;
•

Reviewing processes for communicating the Code of Conduct to TKZN’s personnel, and monitoring compliance
therewith; and

•

Obtaining regular updates from management and the organisation’s legal counsel regarding compliance
matters.

Reporting responsibility
• Regular reporting to the board about Audit and Risk Committee activities, issues, and related recommendations;
and
•

Provide an open avenue of communication between internal audit, the external auditors, and the executive
management.

Other responsibilities
• Performing other activities related to this charter as requested by the Accounting Authority;
•

Instituting and overseeing special investigations as needed;

•

Reviewing and assessing the adequacy of the Audit Committee Charter annually;

•

Confirming annually that all responsibilities outlined in this charter have been carried out; and

•

Evaluating the committee’s and individual members’ performance on a regular basis.

Marketing and Tourism Development Committee
This committee comprises of a minimum of three members including the Chairperson nominated from the members
of the board.
The primary functions of this committee include reviewing and recommending to the board the following:
Marketing
• Overall marketing strategy, (including PR/Communications and Tourism Information and Research);
•

Annual overall marketing budgets;

•

Progress in terms of the implementation of the annual action plan; and

•

Relevant policies pertaining to:
–

brand management;

–

advertising and promotional campaigns;

–

events marketing and sponsorship;

–

domestic and international marketing;

–

strategic marketing tools;

–

public relations; and

–

tourism information services.

Tourism development
• Recommending budget allocations to tourism development activities undertaken by Tourism KwaZulu-Natal;
•

Guiding and reviewing business plans submitted by management pertaining to tourism development activities;

•

Recommending budget and business plan reviews for development activities every three months;

•

Recommending development policies pertaining to all functional activities of the Tourism Development Business Unit;
and

•

Making recommendations to the board on any matter pertaining to tourism development, within KwaZulu-Natal.

The implementation and ongoing review of the Public Finance and Management Act (PFMA) and Treasury
Regulations related policies has continued during the year under review. The implementation of these policies
continues to result in significant improvements in financial management and human resources management with
the Authority. The financial reports and documentation required in terms of the PFMA as well as the Treasury
regulations were prepared timeously. The quarterly reports required in terms of the memorandum of agreement
entered into between the Authority and the Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism were submitted.

64

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ANNUAL REPORT 2008/9

Report of the Audit and Risk Committee for the year ended 31 March 2009
REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REQUIRED BY TREASURY REGULATIONS 27.1.7 AND 27.1.10
(B) AND (C) ISSUED IN TERMS OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT, ACT 1 OF 1999, AS AMENDED BY
ACT 29 OF 1999 (PFMA) FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
Audit and Risk Committee members and attendance
The Audit and Risk Committee consists of members listed hereunder and meets at least four times per annum as
per its approved terms of reference. During the year under review four meetings were held.

New members in terms of the new board

Number of meetings attended

Ms Z Qunta Chairperson (appointed December 2008)

0*

Ms Y Bacus

0*

Mr Z Gwala

2

Ms N Kheswa

2

Ms B Mnganga (resigned July 2008)

1

Mr T Mthethwa (term expired December 2008)

2

Audit and Risk Committee responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit
Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities
as contained therein.
The effectiveness of internal controls
The systems of controls is designed to provide cost effective assurance that assets are safeguarded and that liabilities
and working capital are efficiently managed. In line with the PFMA and the King II Report on Corporate Governance
requirements, internal audit provides the Audit and Risk Committee and the management with assurance that the
internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as
the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the various
reports of the internal auditors and the audit report of the Auditor-General, it was noted that no significant or
material non-compliance with prescribed policies and procedures have been reported. Accordingly, we can report
that the systems of internal controls for the period under review were effective and efficient.
Evaluation of annual financial statements
The Audit and Risk Committee has:
•

Reviewed and discussed the audited annual financial statements to be included in the annual report with the
Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority;

•

Reviewed the Auditor-General’s management letter and management’s response thereto;

•

Reviewed changes in accounting policies; and

•

Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and accepts the Auditor-General’s conclusions on the annual financial
statements and is of the opinion that the audited annual financial statements be accepted and read together with
the report of the Auditor-General.

Z Qunta
Chairperson Audit and Risk Committee
31 July 2009
*The members joined the reconstituted Committee in April 2009. They, however, participated in the review of
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009.
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Report of the of the Auditor-General for the year ended 31 March 2009
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION OF KWAZULU-NATAL TOURISM AUTHORITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2009
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Kwazulu-Natal Tourism Authority which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2009, and the statement of financial performance, the
statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes as set out on pages 72 to 78.
The accounting authority’s responsibility for the financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with the basis of accounting as determined by the National Treasury as set out in accounting policy
note 1, and in the manner required by the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA)
and for such internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 read with section 4 of the
Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on my audit.
4. I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing read with General Notice 616
of 2008, issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008. Those standards require that I comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
5. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
6. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinion.
Opinion
7. In my opinion the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Kwazulu-Natal Tourism Authority as at 31 March 2009 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended, in accordance with the basis of accounting determined by the National Treasury, as set out in
accounting policy note 1 and in the manner required by the PFMA.
Basis of accounting
Without qualifying my opinion, l draw attention to the entities policy to prepare financial statements as determined
by the National Treasury as set out in note 1 to the financial statements.
OTHER MATTERS
Without qualifying my opinion, l draw attention to the following matters that relate to my responsibilities in the
audit of the financial statements:
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Non-compliance with applicable legislation
Public Finance Management Act
8. During the evaluation of internal control environment it was noted that there are no documented policies and
procedures for skills retention and risk management in accordance with section 51(1) (a) (i) of the PFMA.
Governance framework
9. The governance principles that impact the auditor’s opinion on the financial statements are related to the
responsibilities and practices exercised by the accounting authority and executive management and are reflected
in the internal control deficiencies and key governance responsibilities addressed below:
Key governance responsibilities
10. The PFMA tasks the accounting authority with a number of responsibilities concerning financial and risk
management and internal control. Fundamental to achieving this is the implementation of key governance
responsibilities, which I have assessed as follows:

Matter

Yes

No

Clear trail of supporting documentation that is easily available and provided
in a timely manner
1)

No significant difficulties were experienced during the audit concerning delays or the


availability of requested information.
Quality of financial statements and related management information
2)

The financial statements were not subject to any material amendments resulting


from the audit.
3)

The annual report was submitted for consideration prior to the tabling of the


auditor’s report.
Timeliness of financial statements and management information
4)

The annual financial statements were submitted for auditing as per the legislated


deadlines section 55 of the PFMA.
Availability of key officials during audit
5)



Key officials were available throughout the audit process.
Development and compliance with risk management, effective internal control
and governance practices

6)

Audit committee
•

The entity had an audit committee in operation throughout the financial year;

•

The audit committee operates in accordance with approved, written terms


of reference; and
•

The audit committee substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year, as set


out in section 77 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1.10.
7)



Internal audit
•

The entity had an internal audit function in operation throughout the financial year;



•

The internal audit function operates in terms of an approved internal audit plan; and



•

The internal audit function substantially fulfilled its responsibilities for the year,
as set out in Treasury Regulation 3.2.
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Report of the of the Auditor-General for the year ended 31 March 2009 continued
Matter
8)

9)

10)

There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal
control in respect of financial and risk management.



There are no significant deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal
control in respect of compliance with applicable laws and regulations.



No

The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of the
financial statements.

11)

Yes



A risk assessment was conducted on a regular basis and a risk management strategy,
which includes a fraud prevention plan, is documented and used as set out in


Treasury Regulation 3.2.
12)

Delegations of powers are in place, as set out in section 56 of the PFMA.



Follow-up of audit findings
13)

The prior year audit findings have been substantially addressed.



14)

SCOPA oversight resolutions have been substantially implemented.



Issues relating to the reporting of performance information
15)

The information systems were appropriate to facilitate the preparation of a
performance report that is accurate and complete.

16)



Adequate control processes and procedures are designed and implemented to ensure


the accuracy and completeness of reported performance information.
17)

A strategic plan was prepared and approved for the financial year under review for
purposes of monitoring the performance in relation to the budget and delivery by the
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority against its mandate, predetermined objectives,
outputs, indicators and targets Treasury Regulations 30.1.

18)

There is a functioning performance management system and performance bonuses
are only paid after proper assessment and approval by those charged with governance.

68



Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ANNUAL REPORT 2008/9



11. There was a clear trail of supporting documentation that was easily available and was provided timeously, and
the financial statements and management information were submitted timeously, but required some material
adjustments. The key officials were always available and have substantially addressed the prior year findings.
Furthermore, we have noted that a risk assessment is not conducted on a regular basis. Also, there were
inadequate control processes and procedures designed and implemented to ensure the accuracy and
completeness of reported performance information.
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Report on performance information
12. I have reviewed the performance information as set out on pages 14 to 59.
The accounting authority’s responsibility for the performance information
13. The accounting authority has additional responsibilities as required by section 55(2) (a) of the PFMA to ensure
that the annual report and audited financial statements fairly present the performance against predetermined
objectives of the public entity.
The Auditor-General’s responsibility
14. I conducted my engagement in accordance with section 13 of the PAA read with General Notice 616 of 2008,
issued in Government Gazette No. 31057 of 15 May 2008.
15. In terms of the foregoing my engagement included performing procedures of a review nature to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence about the performance information and related systems, processes and
procedures. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement.
16. I believe that the evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the findings
reported below.
AUDIT FINDINGS (performance information)
Non-compliance with regulatory requirements
Lack of effective, efficient and transparent systems and internal controls regarding performance
management
17. The accounting authority did not ensure that the entity has and maintains an effective, efficient and transparent
system and internal controls regarding performance management, which describe and represent how the
entity’s processes of performance planning, monitoring, measurement, review and reporting will be conducted,
organised and managed, as required in terms of section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA.
Special audit
18. As requested by the entity, an assurance engagement was conducted during the year under review concerning a
project on signage. The report covered the period March 2008 to March 2009.
APPRECIATION
19. The assistance rendered by the staff of the Kwazulu-Natal Tourism Authority during the audit is sincerely
appreciated.

Pietermaritzburg
31 July 2009
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Accounting Authority’s report for the year ended 31 March 2009
Report by the Accounting Authority to the Executive Authority and the Provincial Legislature of the Republic of
South Africa.
General review of the state of affairs
For the financial year 2008/9, the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority (the Authority) received a grant of R66 13 000
(2007/8: R59 036 000) from the Provincial Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism. A further amount of
R2 418 000 (2007/8: R4 250 000) was received in the form of other income. Thus, the total income for the
Authority was R68 831 000 (2007/8: R63 286 000).
The net surplus for the financial year was R634 000 (2007/8: R3 554 000). The main reason for this surplus is due
to the interest received and other recoveries, which were not budgeted for. This has resulted in the increase of the
accumulated surplus as at the end of the financial year to R6 123 000 (2007/8: R5 100 000).
Following the expiry of the term of office of the old board, a new board was appointed by the MEC for Arts,
Culture and Tourism for a three-year term, commencing in December 2008. The committees of the board were
reconstituted as follows:
•

The Audit and Risk Committee replaced the Audit Committee;

•

The Human Resources and Compensation Committee replaced the Corporate Services and Compensation
Committees; and

•

The Marketing and Tourism Development Committee remained the same.

The terms of reference of the board committees are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.
During the year under review the General Manager: Tourism Development passed away after being involved in a car
accident. The position is in the process of being filled.
Following the structural realignment process that was embarked upon during the 2007/8 financial year, vacant
positions of the Chief Operating Officer, General Manager: Marketing and Communications, Manager: Public
Relations and Communications were filled during the year under review. The Chief Operating Officer is responsible
for the efficient and effective functioning of the line business units and reports, together with the General Manager:
Corporate Services who is the Chief Financial Officer, directly to the Chief Executive Officer.
The Authority’s annual action plan was implemented satisfactorily. Further details are contained under the section
dealing with programme performance information.
Services rendered by the Authority
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority, trading as Tourism KwaZulu-Natal is a statutory body responsible for the
development, marketing and promotion of tourism in KwaZulu-Natal. It reports to the KwaZulu-Natal Provincial
Legislature through the Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism. It was established in 1997 in accordance with the
KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act No. 11 of 1996, as amended.
In terms of the regulations for the registration of tour guides as well as the regulations for the registration of
tourism accommodation establishments and related service providers, the Authority performed certain functions
during the year. These include the registration of tour guides, tourism accommodation establishments and the
general Registrar functions. The registration levies payable in this regard were approved by the then minister
responsible for tourism in the province. The levies payable were not adjusted during the financial year under review.
Overall, during the financial year under review, the Authority engaged in various activities aimed at marketing and
promotion of the province as a premier tourist destination. The Authority also engaged in a number of tourism
development initiatives and projects within the province.
Capacity constraints
As already indicated above, there were changes at executive management and senior management levels.
Despite the above, the planned activities and related outputs for 2008/9 were satisfactorily executed and achieved.
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Utilisation of poverty alleviation funds
The entity received funds by way of conditional grants for special projects, including poverty relief projects. These
funds are mainly from the Department of Environmental Affairs and Tourism (DEAT) and are utilised as part of the
Authority’s tourism development initiatives. This is in line with the Authority having been appointed by DEAT as its
implementing agent in this regard.
The funds which were not utilised, mainly due to timing differences, were carried forward to a future period.
Furthermore, a separate bank account is usually opened for each project.
For the year under review, there was a special focus in dealing with various challenges arising out of the
implementation of these projects. Nevertheless, there was significant progress achieved and this will ensure the
successful completion and handing over of these projects to the intended beneficiaries and/or recipients. The
Authority also made endeavours to strengthen its relationship and involvement of the district and local government
in the implementation of these projects.
Business address
Registered office:

Suite 303 Tourist Junction

PO Box 2516

160 Pine Street

Durban

Durban

4000

4001
Bankers:

First National Bank

External auditors:

Auditor-General

Internal auditors:

Internal Audit Unit – KwaZulu-Natal Provincial Treasury

Discontinued activities
No activities were discontinued during the period under review.
New or proposed activities
There were no new activities embarked upon during the period under review. Furthermore, there are no proposed
activities for the upcoming financial year.
Events after the reporting date
There were no material events that occurred after 31 March 2009.
Performance information
In terms of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Act, the Authority must develop an annual tourism promotion, marketing
and development action plan. This action plan must provide clear indications of goals and objectives for the
planning period. Such a plan was developed for the 2008/9 financial year. The progress reports were tabled at each
board and the committees meetings of the Authority. Furthermore, the Authority reported to the Department of
Arts, Culture and Tourism on a quarterly basis on progress towards the achievement of the stated outputs and
objectives in line with the memorandum of agreement entered into between the two parties.
A detailed report on the activities of the Authority is included under a separate section of the annual report.
Approval
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009, set out on pages 72 to 79, were approved by
the Accounting Authority in terms of section 51(1) (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of
1999), as amended and are signed on its behalf by:

N Khoza
Chief Executive Officer

T Dlamini
Chairperson
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Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2009
1. Basis of preparation
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Statements of Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (GAAP), Generally Recognised Accounting Practice and the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 (Act No 1 of 1999), as amended (PFMA).
The following are the principle accounting policies of the entity which are, in all material respects, consistent
with those applied in the previous year, except as otherwise indicated:
Summary of significant accounting policies
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except as otherwise indicated, and
incorporate the principal accounting policies, set out below, which are consistent with those of previous years.
These policies comply with South African Statements of GAAP, including any interpretations of such Statements
issued by the Accounting Practices Board replacing equivalent GAAP statements as follows:

Standard of GRAP

Replaced statement of GAAP

GRAP 1: Presentation of financial statements
GRAP 2: Cash flow statements
GRAP 3: Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors

AC 101: Presentation of financial statements
AC 118: Cash flow statements
AC 103: Accounting policies, changes in
accounting estimates and errors

The recognition and measurement principles in the above GRAP and GAAP Statements do not differ or result in
material differences in items presented and disclosed in the financial statements. The implementation of GRAP
1, 2 and 3 has resulted in the following significant changes in the presentation of financial statements:
Terminology differences:

Standard of GRAP

Replaced statement of GAAP

Statement of financial performance
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in net assets
Reserves
Surplus/deficit for the period
Accumulated surplus/deficit
Contributions from owners
Contributions to owners
Reporting date

Income statement
Balance sheet
Statement of changes in equity
Equity
Profit/loss for the period
Retained earnings
Share capital
Dividends
Balance sheet date

Going concern
The public entity will be a going concern in the year(s) ahead and as such, the Authority continues to adopt the
going concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements.
2. Currency
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand since that is the currency in which the majority
of the entity’s transactions are denominated.
3. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the enterprise and these
benefits can be measured reliably.
Revenue arising from registration levies is recognised in full upon becoming a member or renewal of
membership, net of value-added taxes. The licensing as well as acceptance of such registration by the Authority
record membership upon receipt of payment and submission of registration application forms. Membership is
renewed annually for tourism establishments and biannually for tour guards.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate over the period to maturity.
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4. Irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with, a requirement
of any applicable legislation, including:
•

The PFMA; or

•

Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure that was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care been exercised.
All irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure is charged against income in the period in which it is incurred.
5. Foreign currencies
Transactions in currencies other than the entity’s reporting currency (Rand) are initially recorded at the rates of
exchange ruling on the dates of the transactions. Gains and losses arising from the settlement of such
transactions are recognised in the income statement.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling
on the balance sheet date. Unrealised differences on monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they occurred.
6. Retirement benefit costs
The entity operates a defined contribution plan, the assets of which are generally held in separate trusteeadministered funds. The plans are generally funded by payments from the entity.
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged to the income statement in the year to
which they relate.
7. Taxation
The entity operated on funds derived from Government grants. In terms of a directive issued by the South
African Revenue Service, the receipts and accruals of the KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority are exempt from
income tax.
8. Unusual items
All items of income and expense arising in the ordinary course of business are taken into account in arriving at
income before taxation. Where items of income and expense are of such size, nature or incidence that their
disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the entity, they are separately disclosed and appropriate
explanations are provided.
9. Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, on the following bases:
•

Computer software

•

Office equipment

50%

– photographic

16,6%

– dictaphones

33,3%

– perforating equipment

16,6%

– television

16,6%

– surveyors equipment

20%

•

Computer hardware

33,3%

•

Office furniture

16,6%

•

Office fittings and alterations

16,6%

•

Videos

50%
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Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2009 continued
The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.
Property, plant and equipment has been accounted for at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, not at fair value less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses as required by the International Accounting Standards (IAS 16) “Property, Plant and Equipment”. The fair
value of property, plant and equipment was assessed and it was found that the difference arising from the
application of IAS 16 was insignificant in the current financial year.
10. Intangible assets
Expenditure on trademarks and patents is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Internally generated intangible assets (research and development costs)
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
11. Impairment
At each balance sheet date, the entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are immediately recognised as an expense,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under the standard.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that other standard.
12. Borrowings
In terms of section 66(3)(c) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999, a public entity may only through the
Minister of Finance borrow money or, in the case of the issue of a guarantee, indemnity or security, only
through the Minister of Labour, acting with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance.
In terms of section 32.1.1 of the Treasury Regulations a public entity may borrow money for bridging purposes
with the approval of the Minister of Finance, subject to certain conditions.
13. Leasing
Finance leases as per the Treasury Regulations refers to a contract that transfers the risks, rewards, rights and
obligations incident to ownership to the lessee and is recorded as a purchase of equipment by means of longterm borrowing;
All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The entity as a lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
The entity as a lessee
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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14. Financial instruments
Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the entity’s balance sheet when the entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets
The entity’s principle financial assets are trade receivable and cash and cash equivalents.
•

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.

•

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at nominal value, which approximates their fair value.

Financial liabilities
The entity’s principle financial liabilities are accounts payable.
•

Trade payables
Trade and other payables are stated at their nominal value.

15. Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable
that this will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be estimated reliably.
16. Government grants
Government grants are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the public
entity and these benefits can be measured reliably. The grant is recognised to the extent that there are no
further obligations arising from the receipt of the grant.
17. Comparative figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in the current
year.
18. Cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, short-term investments with financial institutions and the
amount deposited with financial institutions as part of the entity’s current account.
Funds under administration in respect of special projects are deposited with financial institutions and are
accounted for as such.
Cash and cash equivalent are stated at nominal value.
19. Projects funds
The entity receives funds by way of conditional grants for special projects, including poverty relief projects.
Funds which are not utilised, mainly due to timing differences, are carried forward to a future period.
Expenditure incurred on these funds is accounted for on a cash basis. Furthermore, a separate bank account is
usually opened for each project.
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Statement of financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2009
Notes

2009
R’000

2008
R’000

Grants and transfers

1

66 413

59 036

Other income

2

2 418

4 250

68 831

63 286

REVENUE

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENDITURE
Administrative expenses

3

4 046

3 328

Staff costs

4

16 679

14 550

Marketing expenses

5

38 317

33 664

11

24

6

2 388

2 620

Interest paid
Tourism development expenses
Other operating expenses

7

4 846

4 489

Depreciation

8

1 910

1 057

68 197

59 732

634

3 554

5 100

1 546

5 734

5 100

TOTAL EXPENDITURE
Net (deficit)/surplus for the year
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year
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Statement of financial position as at 31 March 2009
Notes

2009
R’000

2008
R’000

8

3 014

3 829

3 014

3 829

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Current assets
Receivables

10

5 036

1 793

Cash and cash equivalents

11

9 423

24 691

14 459

26 484

17 473

30 313

9

5 734

5 100

Trade and other payables

13

10 694

24 417

Provisions

12

1 045

796

11 739

25 213

17 473

30 313

Total assets
RESERVES AND LIABILITIES
Reserves
Current liabilities

Total reserves and liabilities
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2009
Notes

2009
R’000

2008
R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash (utilised in)/generated from operations

14

65 588

62 953

(80 661)

(57 508)

(15 073)

5 445

Interest received

911

Interest paid

(11)

(24)

(14 173)

6,426

(1 095)

(2 623)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

1 005

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of:
Property, plant and equipment
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
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(15 268)

3 803

24 691

20 888

9 423

24 691

Statement of changes in net assets for the year ended 31 March 2009
Notes

2009
R’000

Balance at 1 April 2008

9

5 100

1 546

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year

9

634

3 554

5 734

5 100

5 100

1 546

634

3 554

5 734

5 100

2008
R’000

Accumulated surplus

Balance at 31 March 2009
Total reserves
Balance at 1 April 2008
Net (deficit)/surplus for the year
Balance at 31 March 2009
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Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009
2009
R’000

2008
R’000

66 413

59 036

Interest income

911

1 005

Sundry income

1 280

2 980

227

265

2 418

4 250

444

285

736

706

1. Grants and transfers
Provincial Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism (DACT)
2. Other Income

Registration levies
Total
3. Administrative expenses
General and administrative expenses
Auditor’s remuneration
– Audit fees

760

490

Rentals in respect of operating leases

Travel and subsistence

1 984

1 613

– Buildings

1 728

1 268

– Plant, machinery and equipment

256

345

Directors’ emoluments

138

143

Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)

(16)

91

Total

4 046

3 328

14 940

12 776

4. Staff costs
Basic salaries
Temporary
Defined provident fund contribution plan expenses
Total
Total number of employees as at 31 March 2009

70

273

1 669

1 501

16 679

14 550

57

57

29 008

25 957

5. Marketing expenses
Marketing activities
Image building

3 803

3 943

Research and information services

5 506

3 764

38 317

33 664

Total
6. Tourism development expenses
Project management unit

1 463

1 211

Community based tourism

320

124

Tourism investment promotion

587

1 248

18

37

2 388

2 620

Small business support
Total
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2009
R’000

2008
R’000

7. Other operating expenses
Staff training and development

425

375

Consultants, contractors and special services

21

128

Legal fees

84

76

Maintenance, repairs and running costs

148

89

– Property and buildings

148

89

29

47

Other

Entertainment expenses

4 139

3 774

Total

4 846

4 489

Gross carrying value

Accumulated depreciation

Opening Additions Disposal
R’000 R’000 R’000

Closing Opening
R’000 R’000

Depreciation Disposal
R’000 R’000

Net
carrying
Closing value
R’000 R’000

8. Property, plant
and equipment
2009
Office furniture
Office equipment

1 334

114

–

1 448

783

140

–

923

525

328

17

–

345

242

39

–

281

64

Office fittings
and alternations

2 064

143

–

2 207

1 133

252

–

1 385

822

Computer software

2 557

393

–

2 950

667

1 243

–

1 910

1 040

Computer hardware

1 836

428

–

2 264

1 465

236

–

1 701

563

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

–

8 119

1 095

–

9 214

4 290

1 910

–

6 200

3 014

1 346

18

30

1 334

663

150

(30)

783

551

331

10

13

328

216

39

(13)

242

86

Library acquisitions
Total
2008
Office furniture
Office equipment
Office fittings
and alternations
Computer software
Computer hardware
Library acquisitions

2 066

–

2

2 064

875

260

(2)

1 133

931

404

2 247

94

2 557

389

372

(94)

667

1 890

2 362

348

874

1 836

2 103

236

(874)

1 465

371

15

–

15

–

15

–

(15)

–

–

525

–

525

–

–

–

–

–

–

7 049

2 623

1 553

8 119

4 261

1057

(1 028)

5 318

3 829

Work-in-progress:
Office fittings
and alterations
Total
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9. Reserves
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year
Net (deficit)/surplus for the year
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year

2009
R’000

2008
R’000

5 100
634

1 546
3 554

5 734

5 100

The accumulated surplus was not budgeted for and will be utilised for the
purpose it was intended for.
The Authority has requested consent from the Department of Arts, Culture
and Tourism to carry forward this accumulated surplus to future years.
10. Receivables
Receivables
Less: Provision for impairment

1 346
(613)

603
(281)

SARS – VAT
SARS – PAYE
Staff advances
Rental deposits

733
3 970
–
33
245

322
1 293
31
39
108

Total

5 036

1 793

7 856
5
452
1 110

13 384
5
7 912
3 390

9 423

24 691

The provision for impairment has been determined by reference to the
Authority’s policy of management of debts, past default experience and the
current economic environment.
The Authority consider the carrying amount of receivables approximates to
their fair value.
11. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank
Cash on hand
Short-term investments
Projects funds
Total

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term, highly liquid investments that are held with registered
banking institutions with maturities of three months or less and that are subject to insignificant interest rate risk.
The carrying amount of these assets approximates to their fair value.

Provision for
leave pay

Provision for
annual
bonuses

Total

12. Provisions
Opening balance 1 April 2008

690

106

796

Utilisation of provision during the year

(492)

(423)

(915)

Provisions made during the year

713

451

1 164

Closing balance 31 March 2009

911

134

1 045

The leave pay and bonus provision relates to the Authority’s estimated liabilities arising as a result of services
rendered by employees.
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13. Trade and other payables
Trade payables
SARS – PAYE
Accruals
Projects funds (note 13.1)
Total

2009
R’000

2008
R’000

2 689
318
–
7 687

7 748
–
50
16 619

10 694

24 417

–
7 687

3 390
13 229

7 687

16 619

634

3 554

1 910
(911)
11
1 644

1 057
(1 005)
24
3 630

(2 994)
(4 791)
(8 932)

(333)
3 140
(992)

(15 073)

5 445

The Authority consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables
approximates to their fair value.
13.1 Projects funds
Annexure A
Made up as follows:
Project funds bank accounts
Cash in the Authority’s bank accounts
Total
14. Reconciliation of (deficit)/surplus to cash generated from operations
Net (deficit)/surplus for the year
Adjusted for:
– Depreciation
– Interest received
– Interest paid
Operating cash flows before working capital changes
Working capital changes
– Decrease/(increase) in receivables
– Increase/(decrease) in payables
– Increase/(decrease) in projects funds
Cash generated from /(utilised in) operations

15. Employee benefits
15.1 Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits is expensed in the income statement in the reporting period
when the payment is made. Short-term employee benefits that give rise to a present legal or constructive
obligation is deferred until they can be reliably measured and then expensed. Details of these benefits and
potential liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements and are not recognised in the income
statement.
15.2 Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed as and when the payment is made.
15.3 Retirement benefits
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority contributes to the Old Mutual Orion Provident Fund. Membership is
compulsory for all permanent employees. The fund is a defined contribution fund. The Authority
contributes 15% of the pensionable remuneration. The employees do not contribute to this fund.
The Authority’s contribution to the fund were R1668 941 (2008: R1 501 397). None of the members of
the board are members of the Fund.
15.4 Medical benefits
The KwaZulu-Natal Tourism Authority provides medical benefits for its employees through Discovery
Health Benefit Plans. These benefits are funded by employee contributions since the Authority works on
the total cost of employment. No provision is made for medical benefits in the financial statements of the
Authority.

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal ANNUAL REPORT 2008/9

83

Notes to the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009 continued
Fees for services
R

Other
R

Total
R

16. Board members’ emoluments and
executive management remuneration
Board members’ emoluments
Ms T Dlamini (Chairperson of the board)
Dr SV Chonco
Dr T Goba
Ms N Kheswa

8 040

1 273

9 313

25 305

2 547

27 852

5 250

1 794

7 044

10 260

1 220

11 480

Mr S Luzipho

5 250

1 419

6 669

Ms S Maharaj

6 000

1 867

7 867

Ms B Mnganga CA (SA)

1 200

–

1 200

Mr S Mshengu

10 260

2 820

13 080

Mr K Naidoo

9 750

3 257

13 007

Ms Z Qunta

1 005

243

1 248

Mr A Vels

3 000

1 463

4 463

Mr K Pretorius

2 010

768

2 778

Ms B Bhoola

9 000

3 787

12 787

Mr S Naidoo

2 010

340

2 350

Mr T Mthethwa

7 500

6 007

13 507

Mr M Khubone

2 010

–

2 010

Ms N Pretorius

1 005

178

1 183

108 855

28 983

137 838

Performance Provident fund
related pay and medical aid
R
R

Total
remuneration
R

Total

Basic
salary
R
Executive management remuneration
Chief Executive Officer
(1 April 2008 to 31 March 2009)

838 391

–

128 802

967 193

488 853

–

77 814

566 667

1 327 244

–

206 616

1 533 860

Chief Operating Officer
(August 2008 to 31 March 2009)
Total
17. Contingent liabilities
There is a contingent liability of R5,734 million as a result of the surplus funds not returned to the Provincial
Treasury.
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2009
R’000

2008
R’000

18. Operating lease agreements
Authority as lessee
At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:
Up to one year

2 209 944

760 938

One to five years

3 371 630

11 262 910

Total

5 581 574

12 023 848

193 524

193 524

16 127

–

209 651

193 524

At the balance sheet date the Authority had outstanding leases commitments
in respect of office equipment which fall due as follows:
Up to one year
One to five years
Total
All the above lease agreements in respect of the equipment are not renewable
at the end of the lease term and the Authority does not have the option to
acquire the equipment. These lease agreements do not impose any restrictions.
Authority as lessor
At the balance sheet date the Authority had contracted with sub-tenants for
the following minimum future lease payments:
62 719

82 200

One to five years

Up to one year

363 012

406 250

Total

425 731

488 450

–

–

–

–

19. Capital commitments
Commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment:
– Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements

The capital expenditure is to be funded as follows:
Internally generated funds

–

–

–

–

20. Subsequent events
There were no material events that occurred subsequent to the reporting period.
21. Related party transactions
There were no related party transactions during the year under review.
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22. Financial instruments
In the course of the Authority’s business operations it is exposed to currency, credit and liquidity risk. The
Authority has developed a comprehensive risk management process to monitor and control these risks. The risk
management process relating to each of these risks is discussed under the relevant heading below.
Currency risk
The Authority undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations. However, due to the relatively small number of transaction, the Authority does not take any
forward foreign exchange contracts. Financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies as
at year end are translated using the spot rate at year end. The volume of foreign transactions is small and is not
expected to have a material effect on the annual financial statements.
Credit risk
Financial assets, which potentially subject the Authority to the risk of non-performance by counter-parties and
thereby subject the Authority to concentrations of credit risk, consists mainly of cash and cash equivalents and
trade receivables.
The Authority limits its treasury counter-party exposure by only dealing with well established financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The Authority does not expect any
treasury counter-parties to fail to meet their obligations, given their high credit rating.
Credit risk with respect to trade receivables is limited due to the large number of debtors comprising the
Authority’s debtors base and their dispersion across different industries and geographical areas. The Authority
does not have any significant exposure to any individual debtor or counter-party. Accordingly, the Authority does
not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk, which had not been adequately provided
for. Trade receivables are presented net of the allowance for impairment.
Liquidity risk
The Authority manages liquidity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and
actual versus forecasted cash flows. Adequate reserves and liquid resources facilities are also maintained.
Maturity profile
The maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities at balance sheet date are as follows:

One year or less
R’000

Total
R’000

Cash

9 423

9 423

Receivables

5 036

5 036

14 459

14 459

Trade and other payables

10 694

10 694

Total financial liabilities

10 694

10 694

3 765

3 765

100

100

Year ended 31 March 2009
Assets

Total financial assets
Liabilities

Percentages
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(%)

22. Financial instruments continued
Fair values
The Authority’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade
payables.
No financial asset was carried at an amount in excess of its fair value and fair values could be reliably measured
for all financial assets and that are available-for-sale or held-for-trading.
The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the fair value of each class of financial
instruments:
Cash and cash equivalents
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term
maturity of this financial asset.
Trade receivables
The carrying amount of trade receivables, net of provision for impairment, approximates fair value due to the
relatively short-term maturity of this financial asset.
Trade payables
The carrying amount of trade payables approximates fair value due to the relatively short-term maturity of this
financial liability.
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Accumulated
2008

Interest
received

Actual
expenditure

Transfers

Anglo Boers

55 282

–

45 390

–

9 892

CEO’s Projects

79 132

–

–

–

79 132

Project name

Accumulated
2009

23. Accumulated project funds
as at 31 March 2009
(Annexure A)

Community Tourism

1 223 058

–

3 184 593

2 532 929

571 394

Inanda Heritage Route Two

8 939

18 042

9 438

–

–

Nowergian Heritage Route

3 678

3 410

3 859

–

–

54 947

6 364

61 311

–

–

4 022 934

–

2 092 640

–

1 930 321

Capacity Building and Training
Aviation and Charters
Brand Roll-out and

652 854

–

–

–

652 854

Umgababa

Merchandising Programme

513 451

27 504

540 955

–

–

Muden

717 121

38 421

755 542

–

–

King Shaka Route

7 041

13 964

21 004

–

–

eMakhosini

756 201

44 932

5 490

–

795 643

Inanda Phase 2 DoW (Chapel)

341 270

17 396

358 666

–

–

Lilani Phase 3

230 771

12 531

488

–

242 814

Tourism KZN Signage

132 811

17 024

77 858

–

71 978

Kwanobamba Tourism

694 506

33 773

728 279

–

–

7 125 000

–

3 791 384

–

3 333 616

16 618 998

233 362

11 697 669

2 532 929

7 687 617

Ngome
Total
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Abbreviations
ACSA

Airports Company of South Africa

ASTA

American Society of Travel Agents

ATL

Above the line

BEE

Black economic empowerment

BIT

Borsa Internazionale del Turismo

BT

Business tourism

BTL

Below the line

CIOA

Cruise Indian Ocean Association

CRM

Customer relationship management

DACT

Department of Arts, Culture and Tourism

DEAT

Department of Environment Affairs and Tourism

DEDT

Department of Economic Development and Tourism

DM

Destination management

DMS

Destination management system

EIBTM

Exhibition For The Incentive Business Travel & Meetings Industry

ETEYA

Emerging Tourism Entrepreneur of the Year Award

FAR

Fixed asset register

FEDHASA

Federated Hospitality Association of South Africa

GAAP

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GRAP

Generally Recognised Accounting Principles

HDI

Historically disadvantaged individual

HICA

Hospitality Investment Conference

ICC

International Convention Centre

IDC

Industrial Development Corporation

IT

Incentive travel

ITB

Internationale Tourismus-Börse, Berlin

JMA

Joint marketing agreement

KZN

KwaZulu-Natal

MATCH

FIFA appointed accommodation and ticketing agency

ME

Meetings Expo

MEC

Member of the Executive Council

MOU

Memorandum of understanding

PFMA

Public Finance Management Act

PR

Public relations

SAA

South African Airways

SAACI

South African Association for the Conference Industry

SADC

South African Development Community

SAT

South African Tourism

SATSA

Southern African Tourism Service Association

SEDA

Small Enterprise Development Agency

SMME

Small, medium and micro enterprises

TEP

Tourism enterprise programme

TGCSA

Tourism Grading Council of South Africa

TIKZN

Trade and Investment KwaZulu-Natal

TKZN

Tourism KwaZulu-Natal

TTRA

Travel and Tourism Research Association

UNWTO

United Nations World Tourism Organisation

WTM

World Travel Market

WTO

World Tourism Organisation

WWW

What Where and When magazine
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